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Narrative Report

Organisational overview and external environment

With an estimated population of 181,669, a coastline of approximately 150 kilometres, and
encompassing an area of 1,634 square kilometres, we have three Areas of Outstanding
Natural Beauty; Mourne, Ring of Guliion, and Strangford and Lecale.

With approximately 930 employees and an annual budget of circa £60.5M made up from
rates income, grants from central government and income generated from specific
services, Newry, Mourne and Down is the third largest of the eleven local government
districts in Northern Ireland. Our 41 elected members from our seven district electoral areas
serve a diverse population, 23% of which is aged 15 years and below, and 16% being 65

years and older.

During our first seven years we have established a new governance and organisational
structure and delivered major new facilities and projects for the benefit of residents and
visitors. Council has aiso facilitated agreement with partners on the Community Plan,
secured major City Deal investment for the future and began work on publishing a new
Local Development Plan and have developed a Preferred Options Paper to shape




planning across the district for the years ahead. We have delivered our Corporate Plan
2015-19, and are working towards the delivery of the Corporate Plan 2021-23.

Whilst we acknowledge that the COVID19 pandemic may continue to have an impact on
the local area and Council services, our Corporate Plan (2021-2023) sets out the strategic

direction of the organisation and will continue to guide Council's activities and the

allocation of resources over the next year. To support the achievement of our community

planning outcomes and corporate objectives, we will continue to work closely with
government departments and partners across the public, private, voluntary and community

sectors whilst investing in our staff, ensuring they have the necessary support and resources

required to provide high-quality services for all.

Governance

The figure below illusirates the assurance framework in place within the Council which is

approved annually by the Audit Committee. The framework provides information on
compliance with various elements of the Council's Governance arrangements.
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Our Code of Governance — how the Council manages its affairs

Policies, Procedures and Processes

The Council's Assurance Mapping and Code of Governance wds revised and approved by
the Audit Committee on 5 July 2021. This was a best practice recommendation arising from

the Audit Committee self-assessment carried out by the independent chair of the Audit
Committee in January 2019. The Annual Governance Statement on page 22 details the

Council's Code of Governance and significant Governance issues facing the Council. The

Annual Governance Statement also details the special governance arrangements which
were in place due to COVIDI19.



Operational model

Each year, the Council must ensure it has the resources it needs to deliver services to the
standard expected by its ratepayers. Budget plans are submitted to the relevant committees
for approval regarding what the Council hopes to do and how much it will cost. This helps
Council understand how much is required, and taking account of other sources of income,
what ‘rate’ needs to set for the district to raise the required money.

The Council's main source of income for the year ended 31 March 2022 was the District Rate
from households and businesses. This budgeted income amount was £57.5m.

The budgeted income went towards the delivery of the following services, in the year ended
31 March 2022;

°
How we spend your money in 2021/22
Sarvices %of Castper
total £'000
@ Recreatian & sport 7% £10,229
@ Community services 36%  £2199
@ tourism 38%  £2298
@ Culture & heritage 28% £1,718
Waste eollection & disposal 233%  £14,084
Other dleaning & public converiences 5% E2751
@ cenvironmental health 35%  £2,42
Cemeteries, minor works & lleensing 1% £632
& Building control 1% £632
@ Tadingsenices 01% €13
& community planning 0.4% £266
@ cnomic development 1% £1,267
& urban regeneratlon
@ ranning policy 17%  £1,006
@ Democratic representation & management 2% £1.189
@ Coporate management 17% €709
@ Asset management revenue atcount 96%  £5,831
i Otherservices 186%  £11,255
@ Interest payable & government loans 37%  £2,220
Total budget
£60,496,537
== e




Risks ond opporfunities

The Council has an embedded process to manage risks and support the achievement of its
corporate objectives and performance targets. The Corporate Risk Register plays an
integral role in supporting the development and production of the Corporate Plan and is
subject to a quarterly review by the Audit Committee and the Senior Management Team

{SMT).

The key elements of the risk management process are highlighted below:
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In order to assist the Chief Financial Officer in fulfiling her responsibilities, the Council has put
in place a process for assurance / stewardship reporting. The assurance statements should
reflect any significant internal control issues in the relevant Directorate or Service Area and
are timed to support the Accounting Officer in her preparation of the Annual Governance
Statement. Assistant Directors and Directors provide Assurance Statements fo the Chief
Executive on a quarterly basis. Director Assurance Statements are considered by the SMT

on a quarterly basis.

An Internal Audit of Risk Management completed in March 2021. The review received d
satisfactory assurance rating and all recommendations have now been implemented. The
Council's Risk Strategy was revised and approved by the Audit Committee in July 2021 o
comply with HM Treasury's best Practice (Orange Book, Management of Risk; Principles &
Concept) and was approved by the Audit Committee in July 2021.

The key changes to our policy include:
e The infroduction of five main principles of risk management and a number of

supporting principles;
» The infroduction of the "three lines of defence" model which provides a simple and
effective way to delegate risk management roles and responsibilities;
The provision of clear roles and responsibilities for those involved in; and
A risk appetite statement for Council.



The SMT reviewed and updated the Corporate Risk Register in September 2022, based on
the revised Risk Strategy. The following 11 Corporate Risks were agreed:

CR. 01 - Failure to develop and deliver the capita! investment programme for the Disfrict
CR. 02 - Non-compliance with legislative requirements, including procurement

CR. 03 - Failure o effectively manage waste

CR. 04 - Failure to provide timely planning decisions

CR. 05 - Failure to adequately plan for the future and deliver efficiencies and improvement
CR. 06 - Failure fo adequately react to a major incident which would minimise any
negative consequences/impact

CR. 07 - Failure o implement an economic development programme to regenerate the
district and affract inward investment due fo financial uncertainties caused by the current
economic and political climate, including the NI Profocol

CR. 08 - Failure to adequately manage sickness absence resulfing in delays and an
inability to deliver Council services.

CR. 9. Risk that Council does not assist the post COVID 19 recovery of the district, therefore
failing in its objeclives to regenerate and build a prosperous district due to the inability of
Council to be financially sustainable in the long term

CR. 10 - Risk of a cyber security event causing significant operational, financial and
reputational damage to the Council

CR. 11 - Risk of Industrial Action leading to the failure to have necessary staffing structures
and resourcing fo deliver services.

Controls are in place to manage the risks were possible, and where actions have been
identified to further mitigate the risk, they are being progressed by members of SMT and the
Corporate Management Teams (CMT), and progress is monitored and reported on a
quarterly basis. Council currently has seven risks with red residual score ratings. These risks are
highlighted in the table above (bold ifalics).

Since April 2021, the Audit Committee has also considered Directorate Risk Registers, on a
rotational basis, as a mechanism to strengthen the alignment with the Corporate Plan and
ensure risks and be uplifted and cascaded as required.




Financial Statements

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2022 is as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in
the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2022 (the Code)
and the Depariment for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 02/2022. Itis the
purpose of this foreword fo explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in

relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Newry, Mourne and Down District Council's finances
during the financial year 2021/22 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows
approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts.

The purpose of the Narrative Report is fo provide information on the Council, its main
objectives and strategies and the principal risks it faces.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of
group financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures. The Council does not have material interests in such bodies and accordingly
is not required to prepare group financial statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 54, shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit] on
the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Summary (CIES).
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 53, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from rates income. Council's raise rates income to cover expendifure
in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The rates
income position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 55, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of
the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are
matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The
first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use fo
provide services. subject to the need fo maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those
that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes



reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and
reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of rates income and
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of
capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Basis of Preparation

The Council's Statement of Accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended
to present to readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2021/22 year. There
are strict controls governing the accounting standards that must be complied with,

accounting policies must be applied on a consistent basis and officers must follow relevant

accounting and disclosure requirements.

There are also materiality thresholds to be adhered to and officers are obliged tfo make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have endeavours to
ensure that as much information as possible has been presented fo make the accounts as
user friendly as possible within these limitations.

Revaluation of Assefs

A valuation exercise was carried out by Land and Property Services (LPS} as at 31 March
2022 on the Council's land and buildings. As a result, the value of land and buildings have
increased from £174.3 million at 31 March 2021 to £179.6 million at 31 March 2022. In light of
COVID19, LPS has included a disclaimer in their report.

“Valuations of Land and Buildings are carried out externally by Land and Property Services
[LPS}, in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set outin the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

The pandemic and the measures faken to tackle COVID-19 continue to affect economies
and real estate markets globally. Nevertheless, as at the valuation date property markets
are mostly functioning again, with transaction volumes and other relevant evidence at, or
returning to, levels where an adequate quantum of market evidence exists upon which to
base opinions of value. This is true of the relevant local property market sectors relating to
each of the assets types identified and valued herein.

Accordingly, and for the avoidance of doubt, our valuation is not reported as being subject
to 'material valuation uncertainty' as defined by VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation —

Global Standards.”



Performance Report

It has been a challenging period of change during which the Council has continued to
define its role and purpose, develop new policies and strategies, renew its key infrastructure,
integrate and modermise its services and meet ever increasing statutory obligations whilst
managing expectations and competing demands.

The Council's Business Planning and Performance Management Framework drives and
provides assurance that community planning outcomes, corporate objectives and
performance improvement objectives are being delivered, with the primary goal of making

life better for our citizens.
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Through the Business Planning and Performance Management Framework, the Council
manages performance at all levels across the organisation, in order to ensure the necessary
steps are taken fo secure continuous improvement in the exercise of functions. Each level of
the Business Planning and Performance Management Framework is, and will be,



accompanied by a relevant set of perfformance measures to monitor and assess the
Council's progress in improving the quality of life for local communities.

The table below provides a description of the various plans and strategies that form part of
the Council's Business Planning and Performance Management Framework.

Community
Plan

The Community Plan for Newry, Mourne and Down sets out the long-
term vision for improving the economic, social and environmental
wellbeing of the District. Developed in collaboration with partners
across the statutory, business and voluntary sectors, the Community Plan
is underpinned by Priority Actions Areas and seven DEA Action Plans,
which seek to deliver the five community planning ouicomes at a local
level. Progress in implementing the Community Plan is reviewed on a
biennial basis.

Corporate Plan

The Corporate Plan 2021-23 sefs out the vision, values and strategic
objectives for the Council. Each strategic objective is underpinned by
‘supporting actions' and ‘measures of success'. Progress in delivering
the Corporate Plan is reported annually through the NMD Connect
Newsletter and Assessment of Performance.

Thematic Plans
and Strategies

The Council has put in place a number of Thematic Plans ond Strategies
to support the implementation of the Community Plan and Corporate
Plan, including the Performance Improvement Plan, Medium Term
Financial Plan and Regeneration and Economic Development Strategy.
These plans provide the strategic context for multiple programmes of
work across the ogcnisofion.

Directorate
Business Plans

Business Plans are developed annually to demonstrate how Directorates
contribute to the achievement of community planning outcomes,
corporate objectives and performance improvement objectives.
Directorate Business Plans include suites of key performance measures
to measure progress and drive continuous improvement, with
performance being monitored and reviewed bi-annually by the
relevant Committee.

Service Plans
and
Improvement
Projects

Service Plans and Improvement Projects are operational and set out the
direction for service areas across the Council. They outline how each
service contributes to the delivery of community planning oufcomes,
corporate objectives and performance improvement objectives,
include key performance measures and provide a mechanism to
manage performance consistently across the orgc:_nisoﬁon.

People Perform
Grow

The Council recognises the significant role employees play in
contributing to the achievement of the Community Plan, Corporate
Plan, Thematic Plans and Strategies, Directorate Business Plans and
Service Plans. People Perform Grow will demonsirate the link between
the work of employees and how they contfribute to the achievement of
key plans and strategies, as well as the outcomes experienced by local
communities.

Community Plan

The Living Well Together Community Plan outlines the vision for Newry, Mourne and Down to
be 'a place with strong, safe and vibrant comm unities where everyone has a good quality of
life and access to opportunities, choices and high-quality services which are sustainable,
accessible and meet people's needs’. The Community Plan can be downloaded on the
Council’'s website as follows: https://www.newrymournedown.ora/living-well-together

Since launching the Community Plan, community planning partners and local communities
have come together to deliver high quality services and positive outcomes for all. This
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ensures that local people have a say on the programmes and policies that are delivered in
their area, based on the understanding that more can be achieved when we work together

in partnership.

The Council has worked closely with community planning partners to develop more focused
priority action areas in relation to mental health, physical activity, fourism and access to
quality housing. The Council has also taken a lead role in implementing new initiatives
including Participatory Budgeting and the Community Support Partnership.

As part of our statutory responsibilities under the Local Government Act (NI) 2014, the Council
is required to monitor progress against the outcomes and indicators within the Community
Plan every two years. The 2019- 2021 Statement of Progress provides an overview of the key
achievements of the Community Planning Partnership and can be downloaded on the
Council's website as follows: hitps://www.newrymournedown.org/delivering-your-plan

The key achievements of the Community Planning Parinership during 2021-22 can be
summarised as follows:

¢ Hosting the SpeakNMD civic engagement platform which has facilitated multiple
consultations, surveys and polls. Through SpeakNMD, over 6,000 votes were cast for
52 projects through the Communities Leading Change Participatory budgeting
project, which resulted in £57K being allocated to 37 successful community projects;

e A Housing Needs conference took place in Newcastle with over 90 representatives in
attendance from the statutory, community and voluntary sectors, as well as MPs and
elected members;

e Over 30 cohorts engaged in the multi-agency Community Support Partnership which
seeks to support vulnerable adults;

« The establishment of the NMD Youth Voice initiative to engage 16- 21 year olds in a
two year programme, giving young people a voice in local decision making across
the district; and

e Through the Digital Poverty Project, over 100 laptops/mobile phones were provided to
the people who needed them the most, as a result of the impact of the pandemic.

Corporate Plan
Newry, Mourne and Down District Council's Corporate Plan 2021-23 was approved by the

Strategy. Policy and Resources Committee on 17 December 2020 and sefts out the following
mission statement: 'To support and advocate for a welcoming District which is progressive,
healthy and sustainable, providing better economic, environmental and social outcomes for
all’. Progress in delivering the eight strategic objectives within the Corporate Plan s
monitored, reviewed and reported on an annual basis through NMD Connect and the
Assessment of Performance.

Performance Improvement Plan

Part 12 of the Local Government (NIj Act 2014 sets out a General Duty of Improvement for
local government, whereby all District Councils are required fo put in place arangements to
secure confinuous improvement in the exercise of their functions. Each financial year,
Councils are required to set performance improvement objectives for the services they
provide. The guidance states that performance improvement is more than quantifiable gains
in service output or efficiency, or in the internal effectiveness of an organisation.
Improvement should focus on activity that enhances the sustainable quality of life and
environment for communities.

The 2022-23 performance improvement objectives have been carried forward from 2021-22
and were developed within the context of the Corporate Plan 2021-23 and ‘proposals for
improvement' which were put forward by the NI Audit Office, taking into account the
impact of COVID19 on our District, communities and services.
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The Performance Improvement Plan 2022-23 was approved by the Strategy, Policy and
Resources Committee on 16 June 2022 and published on the Council’s website ahead of
the statutory deadline of 30 June 2022. The performance improvement objectives do not
describe every improvement the Council plans to make during 2022-23. Alterndatively, they
provide an overview of how the Council will address the issues which matter most to local
communities. The Performance Improvement Objectives 2022-23 are:

1. We will encourage local people to lead healthy and active lives by improving the
quality of our parks and open spaces;

2. We will grow the economy by supporting local businesses and creating new jobs;

3. We willimprove the cleanliness of our District by addressing littering, fly tipping and
dog fouling incidents;

4. We will build the capacity of local communities through the Financial Assistance
Scheme; and

5. We willimprove the processing times of planning applications and enforcement
cases by implementing the Planning Service Improvement Programme.

Performance 2021-22

Through the annual Assessment of Performance 2021-22, which will be published in
September 2022, the Council will monifor progress in delivering the Corporate Plan 2021-23
and Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22, including the statufory performance indicators
and standards. The table below provides an overview of performance auring 2021-22.

Performance Progress Status
tmprovement Objective Trend

494% increase in recorded attendances at Council leisure A
centres ***
79% increase in recorded visits to Kilbroney and Slieve A
Gullion Forest Parks ***
78% increase in recorded visits at Warrenpoint Municipal
Park == A
We will encourage local
people to lead healthy 119% increase in recorded visits at community trails A
and active lives by
improving the quality of 3 'blue flag' beaches and 5 ‘green flag' parks @
our parks and open
spaces 83% of visitors are satisfied with the Council's forest parks ©
2 new play parks built and 1 play park upgraded A
215 new jobs promoted through business start acfivity @ A
12 new social enterprise businesses supported and 13 ©
new social enterprise jobs created
409 businesses supported and 189 jobs created through
. the 'NMD Growth', ‘Digital Growth', ‘Tender for Growth'’ @ A
We will grow the . '
. and ‘Sales Accelerator' programmes
economy by supporting
local businesses and Increase in the number of VAT and/or PAYE registered
creating new jobs businesses, birth rate of new businesses and employee @
jobs
‘Make it Local’ campaign rolled out ©

=
N



118 fixed penalty nofices issued and 100 paid A@

94 community clean ups supported A@

Slight decrease in the rate of recycling, fo 49.1%*

We will improve the One of the lowest levels of waste sent to landfill across all @ v
cleanliness of our District NI Councils
by addressing littering, [ EAMS (street cleanliness) score of 64 retained and falls
fly tipping and dog just below the regional average of 66

fpuling incidents Anti-littering and responsible dog ownership campaigns

rolled out

£1.54m awarded to 374 projects across 20 thematic areas

69% of applications to the financial assistance scheme
were successful

£936k awarded towards major and minor capital projects

capacity of local 54.908 beneficiaries of the scheme

communities through the

Financial Assistance 6 capacity building sessions delivered to 140 participants
Scheme

98% of applicants are satisfied with the support received
from the Programmes Unit

The Council received and decided on the highest
number of planning applicafions and approved the
second highest number of planning applications across
the 11 Councils

©
©
©
We will build the 36,486 volunteers hours recorded to deliver projects and @
©
©
©

The processing time for local planning applications

between Q1-Q3 2021-22

improved from 19 weeks in 2020-21 to 18.8 weeks @ A

We will improve the

processing times of The processing time for major planning applications

planning applications improved from 64.6 weeks in 2020-21 to 44.3 weeks @ A
and enforcement cases between Q1-Q3 2021-22
by implementing the The percentage of enforcement cases processed within
Planning Service 39 weeks increased from 40.9% in 2020-21 to 48.5% @ A
Improvement between Q1-Q3 2021-22
Programme The number of enforcement cases in the system for 12 A
months or more improved by 13.6% @

*The 2021-22 data in relation to the statutory performance indicators for waste management
remains provisional, as the end of year validated data will be published by DAERA in Q3
2022-23.

* | EAMS score remains provisional as Cleaner Neighbourhoods Report 2021-22 has not yet

been published
** COVID19 a major contributing factor in the increases, as the facilities were not at full

capacity during 2020/21

Directorate Business Plans
All Directorates continued to monitor and report progress in delivering their respective
Business Plans during 2021-22. Below is a snapshot of some of the successes from each

Directorate for the 2021-22 year:
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Enterprse, Regeneration and Tourism Directorate

e Delivery of the COVID-19 Recovery Action Plan complete.

¢ Implementation of the Economic Development and Regeneration Strategy
underway.
6 public realm schemes delivered in rural villages.
Outline Business Case for the Mournes Gateway Project approved and £8m in place
to invest in local tourism facilities.
Successful delivery of Halloween, Christmas and St Patrick's Day events.
2,300 pupils visited the Council's Museums through the COVID-19 Recovery Schools
Engagement Programme.
e Over 13,000 customers attended performances, workshops and eventsin the
Council's Arts Centres.
The Park and Share car park at Bann Road, Castlewelian is complete.
e 23 Pavement Café Licenses were issued to business owners.

Active and Healthy Communities Directorate
o Leisure facilities re-opened and attendances increased by 505%, from 30,618 in Q1 to
185,390 in Q4. The large increase can be attributed to these facilities not being open
at full capacity during the 2020/21 year.
e 2 new play parks built and 1 play park upgraded.
e 211,718 recorded visits at community trails.
e 322 participants engaged in physical activity and wellbeing programmes.

Neighbourhood Service Directora te

e Refuse collection services continued, as normal, throughout the pandemic.

e Phase 2 extension of Warrenpoint Cemetery complete.

s Implementation of the Fleet Replacement Programme and Directorate Procurement
Action Plan underway.
Increase in the number of fixed penalty notices issued, to 118.
New service models for Facilities Maintenance and Management and Cleansing
have been identified.

Corporate Services Directorate and Chief Executives Department

« Ongoing compliance with the statutory Duty of Community Planning and Statutory
Duty of Improvement.

o People Perform Grow rolled out to employees at tier 4 and above, with 100% of
eligible employees in the Directorate participating in the process.

« Implementation of the new PECOS system complete and 88.5% of invoices paid
within 30 calendar days.
Increase in the number of days lost due to sickness absence.
2624 social media notifications issued and increase in the number of users registered
with the Council's social media platforms, from 53,310in QI fo 58,002 in Q4.

e Continued delivery of Capital Programme and disposal of £1 2m of surplus assets.

Corporate Performance Dashboard
During 2021-22, the Council developed and introduced the Corporate Performance

Dashboard fo provide an overview of the organisational health of Newry, Mourne and
Down, using a suite of 18 statutory and self imposed performance measures across arange
of key functions. The Corporate Performance Dashboard is aligned to the objectives within
the Corporate Plan 2021-23 and risks within the Corporate Risk Register. Through the
dashboard, performance is monitored and reported to the SMT and CMT on a quarterly
basis, acknowledging areas of good performance, recognising areas of under performance
and identifying opportunities for continuous improvement in the delivery of key functions.
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Customer Surveys
In September 2018, the Council commissioned a Residents Survey to establish a robust and

reliable evidence base in relation to resident perceptions about their locai area, the
performance of the Council and key priorities for improvement in the future. A
representatfive sample of 764 residents revealed that:
e 87% are satisfied with the Council overall and 73% trust the Council;
o 75% agree that the Council makes Newry, Mourne and Down a good place fo live;
and
s  61% believe the Council provides good value for money, which is above the GB

average of 51

The second Residents Survey is scheduled to be carried out by September 2022 to monitor
resident perceptions, satisfaction with Council services and the local area as a place to live.
Feedback from the Residents Survey will be used to inform the development of future plans
and strategies, particularly the Corporate Plan and Performance Improvement Plan.

During 2021-22, the Council also carried out Customer Satisfaction Surveys for the following
services and feedback is curently being used to identify improvements:

e Planning

¢ Forest Parks and Beaches

Through the Health and Wellbeing Working Group, the Council carried out an Employee
Wellbeing Survey and the results have been used to inform the Agile Working Policy and the
employee Health and Wellbeing programme of work.
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how
the funding available to Council (i.e. government grants, rates and business rates) for the
year has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The
Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes between the Council's directorates. Income and expenditure accounted
for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Council's Usable Reserves increased by £7.513k to
£35,644k. The budget plans formed part of the annual estimates for 2021/22. The total gross
expenditure budget for the Council was set at £75.483k. This was budget which was agreed
as part of the rates estimates process in March 2021.

The Council reported a £8,604k underspend on service delivery at year end. Performance
against budget for each of the Committees is continuously monitored throughout the year.
Management Accounts are presented and scrutinised quarterly at the Strategic Policy and
Resources Committee (SP&R). The year-end Management Accounts position was presented
to Committee on 16 June 2022. The overall favourable position for the year ended 31 March

2022 can be attributed to:

e Covid-19 Funding Support from the Department of Communities of £2.5m has been
included. Council also received DEARA grant aid in relation fo Covid-19 totalling
£581k in January 2022. A further £379k was received in relation to the HMRC job

retention scheme.
e Forecast Actual Penny Product (APP) Finalisation for 2021/22 was £1 .2m. Council also

received £179k as part of a De Rating Grant Finalisation.
Savings of £1.3m had been found within Council's Minimum Revenue Provision.
Council did not need to avail of any loans in year, therefore savings of loan interest of

£161k.
e The Minister for Communities awarded the relevant Councils an additional allocation

in Rates Support Grant in March 2022, this resulted in surplus of £344k.
e Council had a surplus of £2,327k in relation to wages and salaries for the year.
e Overallincome (excluding grants) is showing £1,510k favourable based on the
budgeted figures, mainly due to positive variances in leisure income, planning,
Building Control, Trade Waste and tourism income.

The Cost of Services on Continuing Operations of £68.7m (2020/21 - £64.1 m), as reported in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also includes the accounting cost
of providing services in addition to the amount funded from taxation.

Borrowings

For the 2021/22 year the Council has an authorised borrowing limit of £114.2m. This is based
on the Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to long term. In
conjunction with the Council's capital financing requirement of £105.7m, this ensure the

Council only borrows for capital purposes.

The Council currently holds £69.7m of loans, a decrease of £4.4m on the previous financial
year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years' capital programmes.
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The Authority may also borrow additional sums to pre-fund future years' requirements,
providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing of £114.2m. During the year
the Council repaid external loans of £4.4m. The Council did not borrow any further loans to
fund ongoing capital projects for year ending 31 March 2022.

Capital Expenditure

The Council has an ambitious four-year capital programme of £56.3 million (March 2021). The
four-year capital programme is updated and approved annually by Council in February
each year. The investment will help Council meet the strategic objectives which are set out
in the Corporate Plan. The capital plan is confinually reviewed by the Strategic Finance
Working Group.

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Statement includes allocations of £4.5m to fund capital expenditure.

The most significant capital projects which were completed during the year included:;

¢ Annalong Harbour £578,000
¢ Ballykinlar Hut £200,000
e Loanda Crescent Playground £175,000
e Ballymartin Playground £150,000

Strategy and resource allocation

The Medium Term Financial Plan was approved by Council on 15t March 2021. In accordance
with the Local Government Finance Act (N1) 2011, the Chief Executive, as Chief Financial
Officer is required to provide assurance to members on the robustness of the revenue
estimates and the adeqguacy of the Council's reserves position as part of the rate setting
process. Detailed estimates were formulated, presented and scrutinised by members. They
considered past outturn, current spending plans and likely future demand and pressures.

When setting the district rate for 2021/22 consideration was given to the following key
financial factors and uncertainties for the Council:

o Theimpact of COVID19 Council's operations and finances in the 2020/21 financial
year. The future impact of COVID1? on operations, on our rate base and on our
finances was uncertain, and many assumptions were included within our budgets for
2021-22.

« There was no agreed budget by the NI Executive at March 2021. The absence of an
agreed budget had the potential to impact on the ability of the DfC to issue Rates
Support Grant to Councils. Councils were advised of the percentage allocations of
Rates Support Grant being made available by the DfC for 2021-22 but not the
amount of funding.

. Various uncertainties remained as to the impact of Brexit on the NI Economy Councils
rate base and funding streams. Furthermore, included within our 2021-22 estimates
was various areas of funding received from the European Union under programmes
which we had been advised would continue during the 2021-22 year.
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Other factors leading to the 2021/22 rate increase included:;

s The assumption that Councils will continue fo receive financial assistance from
Central Government in 2021-22 in relation to the impact of COVID19 on income levels
have been made and included in budgets.

e A 2% pay increase for Local Government employees has been estimated and was
included within the budgets for the 2021/22 year.

¢ The increased tonnages and associated costs of waste and recycling across the
district as a result of the COVID pandemic has been estimated to continue into 2021-
22 and is included in the budgets.

e In Autumn 2018, a successful Judicial Review challenge to the Rates Support Grant
allocation resulted in a significant reduction to the calculated proportion of RSG to

be paid to NMDDC.

A detailed cashflow was prepared by management and reviewed with the Chief Executive
to provide her with assurance as to Council's ability o continue as a going concern. This was
reviewed and updated throughout the year.

Outlook

The Council is fully aware that it is operating in a continually challenging environment with
two economic shocks which are presently impacting all organisations (COVID19 / cost of
living crisis). Their impact has significantly impacted on Council's operations and finances in
the current year. The future impact of both economic shocks on operations, on our rate base
and on our finances is uncertain, and many assumptions were included in our budgets for

2022-23.

For the year ended 31st March 2022, Council received the following funding from Central
Government in relation to COVID19;

e £1,753k (2020/21 -£5,606k) from DfC in relation to COVID19 funding support;

e £538k (2020/21 - £2,803k) from DfC in relation to the COVID19 Recovery Revitalisation
programme and Community Support funding:

e £3,515k (2020/21 — no comparable funding} from DfC in relation to the Council's
Covid Recovery Small Settlements Regeneration Programme in March 2022.

e £581k (2020/21 - £1,347k) from DEARA; and

e £379k (2020/21 - £1,891k) from HMRC in relation to the furlough scheme.

Any funding which has not been spent in year has been included in the reserves at year end.
This funding is detailed at note 26c in the financial statements. Further detail on how the
COVID19 funding was spent in year is detailed in note 2c.

various unceriainties remain as to the impact the NI protocol and ‘grace periods' will have
on the NI Economy and the Council. It is too early to understand the full implications on jobs
and investment in the district until negotiafions are finalised and 'grace periods' come to an

end.

The Council continues to face a range of significant budget pressures including general
inflation, utility price upsurges, increases in demand for everyday services as the population
grows, and increases in core costs such as wage increases, the national living wage and
pension contributions. The Councll will also face significant year on year increases in costs in
several areas such as waste disposal costs and construction costs.

However, the Council is committed to delivering business as usual where possible and will
confinue to achieve the strategic objectives outlined in the Corporate Plan 2021-23. The
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Council strives to deliver the highest standards and some of our key achievements for the
year ending 31 March 2022 are highlighted below:

e Successful re-opening of Council facilities, including leisure centres, community
centres, arts centres and museums.

e 505% increase in attendances recorded at leisure centres between Q1 and Q4, this
can largely be attributed to these facilities opening in a limited capacity during
2020/21.

e 1.8m visits recorded at Kilbroney Park, Slieve Gullion Forest Park, Carlingford Lough
Greenway, Warrenpoint Municipal Park and Community Trails.

e 3 'blue flag’ beaches and 5 'green flag’ parks.

e The development of the new Tourism Strategy for the District has commenced.

e 215 new jobs promoted through the business start programme and 189 jobs created
through the ‘NMD Growth', 'Digital Growth', ‘Tender for Growth' and 'Sales
Accelerator' programmes.

e The Council received and decided on the highest number of planning applications
and approved the second highest numboer of planning applications across the 11
Councils.

e 54,908 beneficiaries of the £1.54m awarded to 374 projects through the Financial

Assistance Scheme.
e One of the lowest levels of waste (2,062 tonnes) sent to landfill across the 1 1 Councils.

The Council seeks out opportunities to pursue additional funding streams for the District,
adopting innovative approaches to delivering services and working in partnership to ensure
the Council optimises its resources to deliver on its eight key Corporate objectives. A few of
the current significant initiatives Council are currently developing are outlined below;

1. City Deal - The signing of the Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD) document on 15
December 2021 is the first of its kind in Northern Ireland and confirms partners' joint
commitment to fully implement and deliver on all aspects of the City Deal proposdis.
The £1 billion of co-investment secured from central government and the BRCD
partners, will deliver a bespoke package of funding across the BRCD Region. BRCD
funding has enabled Council to progress on the following ground-breaking projects
that will be transformational for our district:

« The Mourne Mountains Gateway wil redefine visitors' experience of the Mourne
Mountains whilst supporting the sustainable growth of tourism and protecting the
natural heritage and habitat of the region. The project will deliver a world class
visitor attraction, and will create improved, and more sustainable access to the
Mournes.

o Newry Southern Relief Road will link the A1 bypass with the A2 Warrenpoint dual
camageway providing an alternative strategic route for traffic that reduces
pressure on Newry city centre, facilitates onward fravel to Dublin and improves
access to other regional gateways.

o Newry City Centre Regeneration will deliver a civic hub, theatre and conferencing
facilities which, together with new public realm and grade A office provision, will
revitalise the city. The regeneration will also create and sustain jobs, increase
visitor numbers, appeal to residents and stimulate the evening economy.

« Digital and Innovation Projects will play a critical role in contributing to economic
inclusion and sustainable growth. The key interventions of the Digital Programme
include: The Belfast Region Innovation Challenge Fund, Enabling Infrastructure
and Regional Innovation Hubs.

« Skills and Employment projects will create skills for growth, inclusion and for a
digital future are key priorities for BRCD partners
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2. Newry City Park — On the 14 December 2021 the Department of Finance announced
a £16.2 million funding package for the Albert Basin Park Project in Newry as part of
the Executives City/Growth Deal Complimentary fund. The funding will help Council
realise our vision for a world-class city park, central fo our Newry City Centre
Regeneration plans. Members agreed in June 2022 to submit the Outline Business
Case to the Department for Communities for consideration and approval.

3. Full Fibre Northern Ireland (FFNI) - Fast, reliable digital connections have never been
more important and it is crucial that our district is keeping pace. The Council is a lead
member of the FENI Consortium, which is comprised of the 10 local authorities outside
of Belfast.

The Consorfium has been awarded £23m from the Department for Digital, Culture,
Media and Sports (DCMS) to drive greater investment in fiore and digital infrastructure
across Northern Ireland. The Consortium's phased delivery has initially managed two
DCMS funded programmes - Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN) and Rural Gigabit
Connectivity [RGC). It will also manage the delivery of future digital initiatives and
ensure a vital local link for future digital projects at a local authority level.

The £23m of DCMS funding has delivered full fibre to 887 public sector sites, which
includes council buildings, community centres, GP Surgeries, Ambulance stations and
Fire Stations across Northern Ireland, using the "Public Sector Anchor Tenancy”
approach. This represents phase 1 of a proposed longer-term programme of digital
related investment.”

4. The Peace IV Programme —is a cross-border initiative designed to support peace and
reconciliation in Northern ireland and the Border region. Council has been awarded

£ 4.7m of EU funding to deliver the PEACE IV Local Action Plan — Beyond Tolerance.
Ensuring that cross-community engagement continues throughout the districtin a
meaningful way, the aim is fo provide a welcome, enjoyable and worthwhile social
and educational outlet for the community in these challenging times.

As the lead partner, we are responsible for delivering those elements of the PEACE IV
Action Plan that will promote peace and reconciliation in three key areas:

e Children and Young People;

« Shared Spaces and Services; and

« Building Positive Relations.

In line with all other Councils in Northern Ireland and the wider public sector, Council is facing
several challenges. Public finances are under increasing pressures as a result of the
pandemic and the cost of living crisis, ongoing tightening of Government spending agendas,
amongst other challenges. Key risks and planned mitigations are included in our Annual
Governance Statement on Pages 22 to 39.

20



statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts

The Council's Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northem Ireland) 2011 a council
shall make arangements for the proper adminisiration of its financial affairs. A council shall
designate an officer of the council as its chief financial officer and these arrangements shall
be caried out under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the
accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Chief Executive on 29th June 2022.

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's
Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows
for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

o observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United

Kingdom;

e follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis, and

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required 1o:
o keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

« take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
ireguliarities.
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES'
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Council's Annual Governance Statement follows the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the UK 2021/22 and DIC accounts directions. The Annual Governance
Statement comprises the following sections:

s Scope of responsibility:

e The purpose of the governance framework;

e The governance framework;

e Review of effectiveness;

¢ Update on significant governance issues that were declared at the year-end
2020/21; and

s Significant governance issues for the year end 2021/22.

Scope of Responsibility

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is responsible for ensuring that ifs business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiency and
effectively.

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council also has a duty under Local Government (Best
Value) Act (Northern Ireland) 2002 to make arrangements for continuous improvement in
the way in which ifs functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

in discharging this overall responsibility, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs,
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arangements for the
management of risk.

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement, which is consistent with the
principles of the new CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government (2016 edition). This statement explains how the Council has complied with the
code and meets the requirements of the Local Govermnment (Accounts and Audif)
Regulations (Northern Ireland 2015) in relation to the publication of an Annual Governance

Statement.
The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which the local government body is directed and controlled and its activities through
which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. it enables the autherity to
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed fo
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process

designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the local government
body's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
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and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
for the year ended 31 March 2022 and up fo the date of approval of the financial
statements.

The governance framework

The Council's 41 elected members and its committee and management structure ensures
sound governance, ownership and scrutiny in the decision-making process across the entire
organisation. The committee and management structure demonstrate how the decision-
making process is implemented in Council as follows:

eputy Chief
ominsted

Assistant Dir
Digital [nformation

Assictani Dirsctor
Capial &
Procuremsant

*Proposed Directorate Structure approved by Members in December 2021 - not yet
operational.

Decision making process from the period 16" March 2020 to 31t March 2022

In response to COVID19, the Council altered our normal decision-making processes to
ensure that we followed Public Health Agency guidance on social distancing and essential
travel while maintaining continuity of critical services.

At a special Council Meeting on the 16" March 2020, Members agreed to amend the
Standing Orders as follows:
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‘In the event of any civil emergency or any situation which urgent actions are required and
it is either not reasonably practical to convene a meefing of Committee or Council or of
any such meetings called is in court the Chief Executive or Chief Officer nominated by her
or him may exercise all or any of the functions of the Council excepting those which are
reserved to the Council, pursuing section 7 of the local Government Act NI 2014. Any
decisions taken pursuing to this Standing Order will be reported fo the relevant Committee
or Council at the next available meeting. The Standing Order is fo be read in conjunction
with paragraph 2.3 of Scheme of delegation and would happen following consultation with
political parties.’

On 28t April 2020, Members agreed fo amend the Standing Orders again fo aliow for
remote meetings, this amendment had been made fo the regulations by the Executive.
Members agreed to ‘amend Council's Standing Orders by the inclusion of the wording as
set out in the Appendix to the officer’s report to facilitate the confinued holding of ‘remote’
Committee and Council meetings until the necessary legisiation isin force.’

On 6 July 2020 Members then approved to stand down delegated authority due fo remote
Committee meeting now being operational. The record of decisions taken under delegated
authority by the Chief Executive from March 2020 — July 2020 were agreed and adopted af
this Council meeting. From éth Juty 2020 onwards, the normal governance arrangements
were back in place.

The process for committee decision making under delegated authority was reinfroduced on
4'h May 2021 following the expiry of the legislation permitting the hosting of remote meetings
from 7' May 2021. This process involved confinuing to hold remote committee meetings.
with the committee making recommendations to the Chief Executive or appropriate Chief
Officer to exercise delegated authority to implement the recommendations.

On 31st August 2021 Royal Assent was finally granted to legislation extending the Local
Government {Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Disfrict Council Meetings) Regulations (Northemn
Ireland) 2020, under which the remote hearings had been authorised prior to 7th May 2021.
Since this date it has again been lawful for decision-making fo take place by Committee
and Council via remote hearings, without the need for the additional delegated powers
invoked in May 2021.

The extended regulations were in force until the end of March 2022 when the Coronavirus
Act 2021 expired. The legislation contained an enabling clause which allowed for the
making of remote hearing regulations post March 2022. This has been extended to
September 2022.

Through the work of the committees, our Members oversee the work of the Council. Al
Committee decisions need to be rafified by the full Council except where Committees have
been granted delegated authority to make decisions. The full Council, is the overarching

decision-making bodly.

The Enterprise, Regeneration and Tourism (ERT) Committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects directed to the
regeneration and growth of the distict in the context of the outcomes agreed in the
community and corporate plans. The ERT committee is also responsible for all matters
pertaining fo policy and legislation in relation to building control and licencing issues.

The Active and Healthy Communities (AHC) Committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life
at local level in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans.
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The Neighbourhood Services (NS) Committee is responsible for the development and
implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at ensuring the
waste service is delivered across the district in the context of the outcomes agreed in the
community and corporate plans.

The Strategic Policy & Resources (SP&R) Committee is responsible for setting the strategic
direction of the Councll through the development of its corporate plan and other key
corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. 1t will also ensure effeclive use of
resources and value for money for ratepayers and oversee the Council's relationship with
several key agencies and partners.

The Audit Committee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's
risk management framework and associated control environment. It provides an
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance, which is
relied upon by Council, fo the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control
environment.

The Planning Committee is responsible for all the Council's planning functions, except those
matters, which are delegated to Officers or reserved fo full Council.

in addition to the committees listed above, there are also 18 Council Project Boards and
Forums which have been established to support the work of Committees.

The Councit has an Assurance Framework in place that provides sufficient, continuous and
reliable assurance on organisational stewardship and the management of major risk to
organisational success and the delivery of improved, cost effective services. The Assurance
Framework is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee annually. The framework is
structured and provides reliable evidence to underpin the assessment of risk and control
environment for the Annual Governance Statement.

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set outin the
CIPEA/SOLACE Framework (2016 edition). How we meet these seven core principles is
reviewed and at the July Audit Committee meeting annually. A summary of the key
elements of our governance framework are set out in the following table:
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Optimising the achievement of outcomes

Corporate and Directorate plans
Constitution

Strategic financial planning

Risk Management Policy

Vel =V avay VeV m

Developing Capacity and Capability
Organisational Development

People, Perform, Grow introduced

Learning and Development Policy in place
Hamonisation of palicies

Development of a joint Employee Relations
consultation and negotiating policy

Elected Members Development Charter/
Member Leadership Programme

The Chief Executive is the Council's designated Chief Financial Officer {CFO)under the Local
Government Finance Act (Northem Ireland) 2011, responsible for the proper administration of
the Council's financial affairs. Local Regulations in Northern ireland do not require the Chief
Financial Officer to be a professionally qualified accountant nor the role to be separated
from that of the Chief Executive as per the CIPFA principles. The Council is satisfied that the
Chief Executive is supported by a number of fully qualified and experience staff who are
members of various bodies within the Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies
(CCAB) and as such ensure the decisions made by the CFO are based on sound technical

knowledge and understanding.

Having considered all the principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of
Fraud and Corruption {2014}, the Council has adopted a response that is appropriate for its
fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain ifs vigilance to tackle fraud. The Council is
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committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and accountability. The
Council has a Whistleblowing Policy where concerns can be raised. The policy is due to be
updated in the 2022/23 financial year. Fraud and Raising Concems is a standing agenda

item at Audit Committee quarterly.

Codes of Conduct are in place for both staff and Elected Members and define the high
ethical values and standards of behaviour expected, to make sure that public business is
conducted with fairmess and integrity. A Conflict of Interest Policy also exists for both staff and

Members.

Directors, Assistants Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring compliance
with relevant laws, regulations, internal policies and procedures. The Quarterly Assurance
Statement Process provided to the Chief Execulive provide an opportunity to highlights any
concerns. Council has a Head of Legal Services, who is a practicing Solicitor, with an internal
legal team and a continuing arrangement with Belfast City Council Legal Services for further

support when required.

Council utilises various media streams to deliver internat and external communications, such
as the Council websites, publications, brochures, leaflets, social media and media
advertisements and broadcasts. The Council continues to explore ways o digitise services
and use online technology and social media to enhance communication with residents,
customers, businesses and potential visitors fo the District. This has been particularly important
due to COVID19 and many services are now online due restrictions in place during the
pandemic (i.e. payments for building control / licences).

The Council confinuously strives to have the highest standards of governance arangements
in place and endeavours to ensure that ifs partners also have high standards of governance
arrangement in place. Council would control this in numerous ways such as Service Level
Agreements, Letters of Offers and signed confracts,

As a result of the new GDPR law in 2018, Council established new structures and processes,
so Council could comply with the new GDPR laws and implement best practice guidance

from the ICO & PRONI.

Article 5(1)(d) of the UK GDPR prescribes for personal data to be accurate, a corporate wide
Compliance programme of work commenced to ensure ‘data quality' was preserved for all
Council information. That included:

e Creating a new Compliance Team with specific roles & responsibilities;
¢ Implementing new Corporate policies and procedures (Access fo Information &

Record Management};
o Developing and delivering in house training including a suite of training materials to

build staff capacity:
Creating and providing annual performance measurement statistics (p48);
Creating an Information Strategy vision “To provide accurate, accessible information

efficiently” and associated action plan;
e Conducting an audit of information including a Corporate wide data cleanse and

review of the current Retention & Disposal Schedule; and
s [dentification of Information Asset Owners

The were no breaches of personal data reported to the Information Commissioner's Office
(ICO) during 2021/22.
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Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the
Senior Management Team within Council who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Internal Audit's annual report, and by
comments made by the exteral auditors.

Recommendations arising out of internal and external reviews are agreed with management
before finalisation to ensure that they will achieve the desired enhancement fo the control
environment and are practical solutions. Registers are maintained of all outstanding
recommendations and these are circulated at Audit Committee. Assistant Directors must
update quarterly progress on implementing recommendations as part of the Assurance
Statement process. Follow up reviews are also reported to the Audit Committee.

The Chief Executive has responsibility for preparing this Annual Governance Statement. In
preparing this statement, she has considered the governance framework and system of
internal controls in place. The Chief Executive leads the Council's Senior Management Team
to collectively contribute and have oversight of the processes involved in maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework. In producing this statement, full
regard has been made to the register of interests for both Members and Officers, reports of
the internal and external auditor, the Corporate Risk Register, Assurance Statements
provided by each Director and Assistant Director for year ended 31 March 2022.

The Council itself maintains overall control of the governance framework and has been
involved, for example, in revising the Risk Management Strategy in year to comply with HM
Treasury's best practice. Primary responsibility for overseeing the governance process is the
responsibility of the Audit Committee as standing committee of Council. The role of the
Audit Committee extends to receiving reports from the Council's internal and external
auditors to ensure that any issues raised are subject to due consideration and are addressed
by officers on a timely basis. In considering this Annual Governance Statement, the Audit
Committee have considered the review of the governance framework and system of
internal controls prepared by the Chief Executive.

The following process has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance framework:

o the Members: A commitiee structure is in place within Council which provides
elected Members with a democratic mechanism by which to approve and scrutinise
Council Business. Positions of responsibility and Committee Members are appointed
as per the Local Government Act (NI} 2014 and are reflective of the broad political
makeup of the Council as elected.

The main decision-making body is full Council of elected Members who are uitimately
responsible for ensuring effective governance arrangements are in place for Council
to achieve its goals and objectives. Council meets monthly in statutory meetings.
Council has established sub-Committees of Council to consider in further detail its
operations in line with specific areas of responsibility, as set out in the Constifution.
These Committees of elected members are informed by Council Officers.

Council business is governed by Council Standing Orders and Committee Terms of
Reference to ensure that the transaction of the business of Council and its
Committees is properly regulated and conducted in an efficient, fair and legal

manner.
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the Senior Officers: The Chief Executive ensures that all Council services and activities
are delivered in accordance with the aims of the Council's Corporate Plan. The Chief
Executive is supported by a Senior Management Team who meet weekly to monifor
strategic direction and good governance across the District. During 2021/22 a
meeting of the Corporate Management team occurred on a more regular basis due
to COVID19, however the meeting is normally monthly. Directors meet regularly with
senior members of their Directorates to ensure that all staff are aware of Council's
priorities and that risks are being appropriately managed.

Quarterly Assurance Statements are completed by Assistant Directors and Directors fo
provide the Chief Executive assurance over the controls that are in place. The
Assurance Statements also make the Chief Executive aware of any of the risks arising
which may have a negative impact on the Council.

The Audit Committee: The Audit Committee provides an important source of
assurance fo those charged with governance about the Council's arrangements for
managing risk, maintaining an effective control environment, and reporting on
financial and other performance. The Audit Committee has an Independent
Chairperson and met on five occasions during 2021/22. The Audit Committee Terms
of Reference were revised in April 2022 and sets out the purpese and the roles and
responsibilities of Committee.

The effectiveness of Audit Committee was reviewed at the Committee on 28 April
2022. This review was completed using the National Audit Office Self-Assessment

Checklist.

The Committee was satisfied with its overall performance when compared against
the checklist. The NAO checklist is the benchmark for best practice. The Audit
Committee Annual report 2021/22 will be presented to the July 2022 Audit Committee
to support the completion of the Annual Governance Statement.

By Internal Audit: The Internal Audit function is camied out by an independent body
in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. It provides assurance and
advisory services to assist Council achieve its objectives and improve the
effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance processes.

Seven internal audit assignments were carried out in 2021/22 as per the agreed
Internal audit plan. Interal Audit also carried out a follow up review of the 2020/21
recommendations including the extra investigation into the Councils use of Single

Tender Actions.

In addition, during the 2021/2022-year, Internal Audit were commissioned by the Chief
Executive to conduct a governance review within Newry, Mourne and Down District
Council in respect of the Newry City Centre Regeneration Programme. The final
report on this matter was issued on 10 September 2021.

The overall internal audit opinion for 2021/22 was satisfactory, withstanding the
significant issues identified in Assets Management, Estates Management and Follow
up review of implementation of IT strategy and those findings set out in the
governance review in respect of the Newry City Centre Regeneration Programme.
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o Other explicit review / assurance mechanisms:

o Health and Safety: Reviews of Health and Safety by professionally qualified
officers, the Corporate Health and Safety Committee, and various Health and
Safety sub committees.

o Risk Management: Risk Management is embedded across all activities of the
Council and a revised Risk Strategy was presented to the July 2021 Audit
Committee to ensure Councils Risk Management complied with HM Treasury's
best practice. The Corporate Risk Register is presented quarterly to both SMT
and the Audit Committee.

o External Funding: External funding throughout the year is subject to
independent audits from the relevant funders i.e. European Court of Auditors,
Government Departments, SEUPB.

o Local Government Audit: Work carried out by the Local Government Auditor
during 2020/21 is also used by the Council as an additional assurance
mechanism. The Council's Performance Improvement Plan has also been
externally audited by the NIAO.

o National Fraud Inifiative (NFI) — Data Matching Exercise: The Council continues
to conform to the requirements of the NIAO biannual NFI exercise. This
matches electronic data within and between public and private sector
bodies to prevent and detect fraud. Data matching compares sets of data,
such as payroll, pensions and trade creditors’ records of a body against other
records held by the same or another body. The lafest batches of data
matches were released by the NIAO in February 2021 and work relating to the
review and investigation of high risk matches is now complete. The outcome
of the matches testing was reported to the September 2021 Audit Committee.

o Transport Regulation Unit (TRU} —TRU Carried out a review of Councils
compliance against Operator Licence Best practice in January 2022.

The Accounting Officer has also been advised on the review of effectiveness of the
governance framework by the Audit Committee and a plan to address any weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Update on Significant Governance Issues that were declared in 2020/21

Seven issues were declared in last year's Governance Statement and three of these
continue to be declared as issues in this year's statement (Procurement and Conftract
Management, Planning backlog, absenteeism.) Three issues which appeared in last year
governance statement have been amalgamated info one concern this year. The three
governance concerns were as follows;

« Economic and Political Climate including the NI Protocol
o Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD)
« COVID1?

The above concermns have similar root causes and actions and fall under the 2021/22
significant governance concern ‘financial position of Council'.

An update on the remaining governance issues from 2020/21 is provided below:
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1. IT Transformation Project

Council approved the IT Strategy on 16 August 2016 as part of its IT Transformation
Programme. The purpose of the IT Strategy at that stage was for it to act as a roadmap for
the Council's IT service delivery over a 3 to 5-year period.

In March 2020, with the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Council's IT Team were very
much front and centre of the Council's response o enable the continuation of service
delivery, with the majority of the organisation moving fo a working from home environment
and the protection and running of key, vital services. As a result, Council "paused” the
recruitment of the Assistant Director role as part of Planning for the Future and as a
consequence this "paused” the delivery of the IT Strategy.

Internal Audit completed a follow up review of the implementation of the IT Strategy on the
7t January 2022. As the Council refocus on the IT Strategy. they expect to do so with a
business fransformation and digital agenda. Internal Audit stated ‘Notwithstanding the key
events that “paused” the implementation of the IT Strategy, and the good work completed
by the Council during the period on certain IT projects, in our opinion, there are a number of
key improvements still needed to complete and sirengthen the implementation of the IT
strategy. In particular, we noted: a need to refocus the IT Strategy and restart the thinking
around IT spend in the future; a need to ensure there is adequate governance and oversight

of the [T Strategy implementation.

The key recommendation from Internal Audit is that Council should refocus its efforts on the
development of a new IT Strategy seeking fo establish what work remains of the current
strategy. what future work is needed to support transformation and a digital agenda and
what areas of the current strategy are no longer required or supported.

2. Internal Audit — Fleet management — Limited Assurance

Fleet Management — Internal Audit concluded that there remain several key controls absent
from the Council's internal control system for fleet management. Specifically, that
procedures relating to driver defect reports, safety inspections, routine maintenance checks
and the Council's grey fleet are not being followed and there is a need to provide clarity on
a number of the current practices. Internal audit also noted that there has been limited
progress on the implementation of recommendations in a previously agreed internal audit
report and limited evidence that the implementation status of these recommendations is

being monitored by Council.

internal Audit followed up on their 7 recommendations in April 2022. 4 recommendations sill
need to be implemented. Officers have a Fleet Management action plan which they
present to the Neighbourhood Service Committee on a quarterly basis. The last update was
provided to Committee on the 18 May 2022.

3. Internal Audit — Fuel management — Limited Assurance

Internal audit concluded that there are a number of key conirols absent from the Council's
systems for fuel management. Specifically, that there is a need to: clarify roles and
responsibilities in respect of fuel management and agree the draft Fuel Management Policy
and Procedure; establish a clear process for fuel stock counting and reconciliations of fuel
receipts and issues; document the physical security arangements in place for fuel held at
the Greenbank and Strangford Road Depots; and consider whether there should be
additional fuel cards issued to replace the use of the forecourt sign off sheets.
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Internal Audit followed up on their 14 recommendations in April 2022. 6 recommendations
have been fully implemented, 3 partially implemented and 5 have not yet been
implemented. Officers have a Fuel Management action plan which they presented to the
Audit Committee on the 23 September 2021.

Significant Governance Issues in 2021/22

The significant governance issues for 2021/22 were identified through the review of significant
risks within the Corporate Risk Register for the year ending 31 March 2022, consideration of
significant events / issues, internal / external audit reports and a review of the Direcforate
Assurance Statements at year end.

Internal Audit conducted seven reviews during 2021/22. Four Internal Audit Reviews received
a satisfactory assurance rating and three reports received a limited assurance rating. In
agreement with the Audit Committee, Internal Audit also undertook an additional exercise
commissioned by the Chief Executive to conduct a govemance review in respect of the
Newry City Centre Regeneration Programme. The final report was issued on 10 September

2021.
The three reports which received a limited Assurance Rating were as follows;

1. Estates Management — Internal Audit concluded that there remain several key
controls absent from the Council's internal control system for Estates Management
and Security. Specifically, they identified limited progress in implementing or actioning
past audit recommendations that were previously accepted in the 2017/18 intemal
audit report. Internal Audit considered that there is need to: establish a planned
maintenance programme; improve the management of reactive maintenance
requests in practice and record keeping on the 3i system; and review the security
arangements at the Strangford Road Depot and Downshire Civic Centre.

The Assistant Director of Facilities Management and Maintenance is updating the
Neighbourhood Services Committee quarterly in relation to the progress in
implementing these recommendations. The last update was communicated in May

2022.

2. Asset Management- Internal audit concluded that there are a number of key
controls absent from the Council's systems for Asset Management. Internal Audit
recognised the limited improvement to recommended actions from the 2017/18
audit. Internal Audit considered that there is a need to: ensure the Fixed Asset policy
is approved by Council and fully implemented; provide fraining on the Policy to
ensure that Responsible Officers understand their roles and responsipilities in respect
to the safeguarding and maintenance of assets; ensure that the fixed asset register is
up to date and accurate; and the security and existence of assets is spot checked
across all Directorates on a regular basis.

Since the Internal Audit was finalised, Council have infroduced an Asset
Management policy, this was approved by SP&R on the 16 March 2022. The Assistant
Director of Finance provided Members with an update on the status of implementing
the recommendations. The only recommendation which is outstanding is fraining to
the relevant Officers on the revised procedures. This is scheduled for July 2022.

3. Follow up review of implementation of the IT Sirategy —See page 31-1T
Transformation Project.
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Internal Audit also undertook a follow up review of recommendations made in their
2020/2021 internal audit reviews. The review identified that, out of the 54 accepted
recommendations, 30 recommendations were fully implemented, 10 recommendations were
partially implemented, 12 recommendations were not implemented, and 2
recommendations were no longer accepted.

The 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan, at the request of the Audit Committee, was modified to
include a follow up review of the recommendations arising from the investigation into the
Council's use of Single Tender Actions. The review identified that out of the 21 accepted
recommendations, 8 recommendations were fully implemented, 5 recommendations were
partially implemented, 7 recommendations were not implemented, and Inferal Audit were
unable to test the status of implementation for 1 recommendation.

Internal Audit's Annual Opinion during the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, was
that the Council's systems in relation to internal control, risk management and governance
were, in general, adequate and operated effectively and can provide satisfactory
assurance in relation to the effective and efficient achievement of the Council's objectives
withstanding the three limited reports identified above.

The Audit Services Manager will continue to follow up on the legacy internal audit
recommendations which have not yet been implemented. The progress on the
implementation on internal audit recommendations will be reported quarterly at the Audit
Committee along with an update on outstanding external audit recommendations.

The following governance issues have been identified for the year ended 31t March 2022:
1. Procurement and Contract Management

Procurement has remained a significant risk within the Council's Corporate Risk Register.
Corporate Risk 2 details ‘Non-compliance with legislative requirements, including
procurement'. The control environment within Council has improved significantly over the last
number of years;

e The Newry, Moume and Down District Council Procurement Policy and Procedures
was approved by the SP&R committee on 14 December 2017 and subsequently
ratified by Council on 8 January 2018. Business Case templates and procedures were
approved in February 2018 by SMT. The suite of documents was updated again on 23
June 2020.

e In June 2018, a procurement expert delivered training to relevant staff. The training
covered drafting business cases, drafting tender documents, fender evaluation and
training on the Council's e-procurement system.

e A procurement fraining schedule was delivered to all staff. This commenced in
February 2019 and was completed in May 2019. The five separate sessions targeted
officers, proportionate to the value of procurement exercises they regularly
undertake.

e (nternal Audit completed an audit of the Procurement policy and procedures in
2017/18, with a further audit of compliance with the new palicy and procedures in
2018/19. Both reviews received a satisfactory level of assurance.

o Following the Single Tender Action (STA) reviews commissioned by the Chief
Executive, all Directorates have Procurement Action Plans. These plans highlight any
STA Directorates currently have and the plans to regularise this spend if applicable.
They also highlight procurement gaps within each Directorate and highlight the plans
Assistant Directors have in place to regularise this spend. These Procurement Action
Plans are presented to the Audit Committee bi annually {most recently in April 2022)
highlighting progress made and further actions.

33



e A new Procurement to Pay System went live on the 10t January 2022. This introduced
the three-way matching process into Council for the first time. A purchase order is
matched to the invoice which is then reconciled with a goods receipt prior to
payment. When the system is fully embedded Council is going to enquire about the
contract management module and what its functionality is.

e A new tender system also went live on the 10t January 2022. Every Council tender is
now advertised on contract finder.

Even though considerable progress has been made, we are sfill highlighting procurement as
a significant governance concemn. Council is having issues replacing the Head of Service
and the Procurement Policy needs updated to reflect curent pest practice. Social Value
Procurement also needs to be introduced into Councils procedures and this will require a
suite of new templates and training for all staff who are involved in purchasing. This will be
completed in the 2022/23 financial year.

2. Financial Position of Council

The financial landscape for the council is likely to remain challenging for the foreseeable
future. Councils have been directly impacted by two economic shocks (Rising cost of living
and COVID19). Further detail is provided below in relation to Council's financial challenges

going forward.

Rising Cost of Living / Inflation

e« Councils had already budgeted the 2022/23 pay award as part of the rate setting
process, but events of recent months and current cost of living crisis demonstrate that
those budgets are insufficient compared to the draft NJC proposals on top of further
Trade Union demands.

e Market fluctuations causing unavoidable increases in confracts, utilities,
supplies/services and the implications of that for significant programmes of work.
Contractors are inevitably asking for an uplift in previously agreed terms in line with
the relevant procurement clauses so that tender prices reflect inflation. This will have
a significant impact on Council's Capital Programme and there has also been a
significant uplift in our current waste confracts.

« The current pension revaluation is ongoing, which could result in increased employer
confributions in 2023/24.

« The next rates revaluation process which could result in a regional redistribution of
rates income for Councils, particularly as there are a significant number of appeals
from the 2015 revaluation still outstanding and the appeals from the 2019 revaluation
have not yet commenced.

CoviDI?

The financial implication since March 2020 have been unprecedented. The impact of
COVID19 has significantly impacted on Council's operations and finances in the current
year. The future impact of COVID19 on operations, on our rate base and on our finances is
uncertain, and many assumptions were included in our budgets for 2022-23.

There are still significant income losses, particularly in the leisure service areas as people have
adjusted their priorities. The Department have confirmed there will be no further funding
provided to Councils in relation fo foss of Council income due to COVID19.

EU Exit

On 31 January 2020 the UK formally left the EU and entered a Transition Period which ran until
3] December 2020. Discussions are ongoing between the UK and the EU which are aimed at
solving issues associated with the operation of the Northern Ireland Protocol.
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Warrenpoint Port is one of the three main points of eniry for goods entering NI from GB. On
the 1st January 2021 GB became a Third Couniry. Required checks are being completed at
Warrenpoint Port on an on-going basis by trained and authorised staff, working fiexible shifts
aligned with changeabile sailing arrival fimes.

The Council has established appropriate processes to ensure it has the capacity and
capability to deal with any changes or increased demand for its services, arising as a result of
EU exit. Officers continue to contribute to the Project Steering group, led by DAERA, to deliver
the required expanded checking capability at Ni POE's; including People, Process, IT and
infrastructure to facilitate the free flow of existing trade post transition as the NI Protocol is
implemented on a phased basis. Officers are also continuing to work across Council
practitioner groups in areas of procurement, waste, finance and legal to ascertain the
impact of Brexit and will plan for any impacts once known.

The Council will need to secure permanent adequate funding and resources to ensure

effective delivery of Council's responsibilities relating fo carrying out inspections at
Warrenpoint port.

Northem Ireland Assembly and Budget Authority

Following the resignation of the First Minister and the subsequent lack of an Executive, a
Budget for 2022-23 could not be finalised. The Finance Minister wrote fo departments to set
out a way forward in the absence of an Executive to agree a Budget. This process involved
the Department of Finance issuing departments with contingency planning envelopes for the
2022-23 financial year. These envelopes provided departments with an assessment of the
minimum funding they could reasonably expect for 2022-23 and allowed departments to
pian for expenditure until such fimes as a Budget could be agreed.

Therefore, no budget is agreed for the 2022/23 year including the Rates Support Grant
allocation. Recent reductions in rates support grant have yet to be overfurned and there is
even greater uncertainty about future levels Rates Support Grant given the budgetary
pressures in central government.

Belfast Region City Deal {BRCD

On the 15 December 2021 Northern Ireland first City Deal was signed. unlocking £1 billion of
co-investment for the Belfast region. The Belfast Region City Deal unlocks £1 billion of
transformative co-investment which will deliver more than 20 highly ambitious projects and
programmes, create up to 20,000 new and better jobs and help make the region a global
investment destination over the next decade.

Belfast Region City Deal partners have been working intensively since 2017 with the NI
Executive, UK Government and industry partners to develop the deal and prepare the case
for investment. The UK Government and NI Executive have each committed up to £350
million to the BRCD and the BRCD partners will contribute a further £150 miltion. By leveraging
additional private sector investment, the programme will have an overall value well over £1

billion.

Council have governance structures in place via Programme Boards, which will have over
sight on the design, development and implementation of the regeneration and fourism
capital projects which Council are the lead on. Council decisions on City Deal initiatives will
be tabled af the ERT and SP&R Committees, which will be supplemented with a focused City
Deal councillor reference group. At a regional level Advisory Boards have been established
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under each of the City Deal pillars, and NMDDC officials sit on the Executive Board, relevant
pillar boards, Finance Directors Group and other groups as relevant fo NMDDC's projects.

A Governance Review of the NCCR Programme was carried out by Council's internal
auditors during August 2021, following a number of concerns raised by Members. The review
concluded that the intemal auditors did not believe the concerns raised by Members should
impact on the Council progressing the Regeneration Programme.

3. Planning Backlog

The *failure to provide robust and timely planning decisions' is highlighted as a risk within the
Corporate Risk Register. This has been reinforced by the development of the performance
improvement objective to 'improve the processing times of planning applications and
enforcement cases by implementing the Planning Service Improvement Programme’ which
was agreed in 2021-22 and has been camied forward to 2022-23.

Despite the challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic, the continued
implementation of the Planning Service iImprovement Programme is well underway and has
been led by an independent planning project consultant. The aim of the programme is to
review and refine processes and procedures, support employees to deliver service
improvements and improve the responsiveness of the Development Management Service,
particularly in relation fo the time taken to determine planning applications and fo bring
enforcement cases to a satisfactory conclusion.

Between Q1-Q3 2021-22, Newry, Mourne and Down received 1,331 planning applications,
which is the highest across Northern Ireland and exceeds the 1,177 applications received
between Q1-Q3 2020-21. Despite the the high volume of planning applications received, the
Council has made progress in reducing the number planning applications and enforcement
cases currently in the system.

« The number of planning applications in the system for 12 months or less has
decreased from 857 in March 2021 to 825 in December 2021.

e The number of planning applications in the system for 12 months or more has
decreased from 195 in March 2021 to 187 in December 2021.

e The number of enforcement cases in the system for 12 months or more has decreased
from 546 in March 2021 to 486 in December 2021.

Through the Performance Improvement Plan, the Council has agreed and published a suite
of performance measures and fargets to reduce the backlog of planning

applications. Progress in achieving the targets set is monitored and reported to the SMT,
SP&R Committee and Audit Commitiee on a bi-annual basis.

It should be noted that, whilst the Council has not yet achieved the statutory standards, the
time taken to process planning applications and enforcement cases has improved over the
past three years.

e The time taken to process local planning applications has reduced from 20.6 weeks in
2019-20 to 18.3 weeks between Q1-Q3 2021-22 and is above the curent Narthern

ireland average of 16.8 weeks.
s The fime taken to process major planning applications has reduced from 94 weeks in
2019-20 to 49.8 weeks between Q1-Q3 2021-22 and is below the current Northern

Ireland average of 55.9 weeks.
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e The percentage of planning enforcement cases progressed within 39 weeks
improved, from 36.2% in 2019-20 o 46.9% between Q1-Q3 2021-22, and remains well
below the current Northern Ireland average of 70%.

These figures correlate with the findings of the Planning Satisfaction Survey which was carried
out in January 2022. Through the survey, 113 Planning Agents were consulted on the aspects
of the service that are working well and potential areas for improvement. Whilst only 29
Planning Agents responded, which equates to a low response rate of 25%, the findings

indicate that:

e 69% are satisfied with the reception service
e 48% are safisfied with the expertise and knowledge of Planning Officers
e 7% are satisfied with the fime taken to process planning applications

The feedback from the survey, combined with the continued implementation of the
performance improvement objective during 2022-23, will deliver service improvements by
addressing the backlog of planning applications in the system, reducing the caseloads of
Planning Officers, improving processing times and putting in place sound foundations to
provide a more modern, efficient, resilient and responsive Development Management
Service. It should however be noted that, whilst performance may be temporarily impacted
by the implementation of the new electronic planning system during 2022-23, progress in will
continue to be monitored quarterly through the Corporate Risk Register and bi-annually
through the Performance Improvement Plan.

4. Absenteeism

The ‘failure o adequately manage sickness absence resulting in delays and an inability to
deliver Council services' is included as a risk in the Corporate Risk Register. Between 2019-20
and 2020-21, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council recorded a decrease in the number
of days lost per employee, from 15.80 days (which was above the Northern Ireland average
of 14.2 days) to 13.55 days. This includes a significant reduction in short term absence, which
decreased from 4.10 days to 2.37 days lost per employee and is the lowest level of short ferm
absence recorded since 2015-16. Significantly, 63.5% of the workforce {654 employees) had
no recorded absence during 2020-21, which is an improvement when compared to the
46.2% of employees with no recorded absence during 2019-20.

However, between 2020-21 and 2021-22, the number of days lost due to sickness absence
increased by 5,671 days, from 12,107.5 days to 17,778.5 days, representing an overall
increase of 46.8%. This can partially be attributed to the upsurge in days lost due to
coronavirus and vaccine reaction, which increased by 397.1%, from 608 days in 2020-21 to

3,022.5 days in 2021-22.

Senior management continues to put in place arangements to monitor and reduce the
number of days lost per employee:

¢ Adoption of the Managing Attendance Policy and Procedure in April 2020 and
subsequent implementation, which formed part of an internal audit in April 2021. The
Council's Internal Auditors concluded that the systems and controls in place for
managing attendance at work are satisfactory. Seven recommendations were put
forward, five of which are fully implemented and two remain partially implemented.

« Ongoing provision of support and guidance to line managers, reminding them of
their responsibilities in relation to absence management, return to work meetings and
the completion of the mandatory training on the Council's e-learning platform.
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» Quarterly reporting of absence management figures to the SMT and SP&R Committee
and monthly reporting of outstanding retumn to work meetings fo CMT.

e Introduction of the Corporate Performance Dashboard which includes two
performance measures in relation to the number of days lost and outstanding retum
to work meetings. The Dashboard is monitored and reported to the SMT and CMT on
a quarterly basis and the data'is analysed at a corporate, directorate and
departmental level, providing an insight into areas of good performance and areas
of under performance, which may benefit for targeted infervention.

e Introduction of a number of initiatives over the past few years to support employee
health and wellbeing, including the establishment of the Health and Wellbeing
Working Group and implementation of People Perform Grow which provides an
opportunity for employees fo discuss any health and well-being matters with their line
managers. People Perform Grow will be rolled out to employees at tier 5 and above
during 2022-23.

However, senior management recognise that further improvements are required fo address
the recent upsurge in the number of days lost due to sickness absence and further actions
will be highlighted within Council's Corporate Risk Register.

5. Digital Information and Cyber Security

Digital Information and Cyber Security is a significant governance issue and is overseen
through the Councils Risk Management Processes. It is curently one of our red risks on
Councils Corporate Risk register; ‘Risk of a cyber security event causing significant
operational, financial and reputational damage to the Council'.

There has been a major increase in security threats from March 2020. The increase in threat
activity is projected to continue on a steeper trajectory over the course of, at least, the next

5 years.

In June 2022 Council was subject to a cyber incident which was classified as a ‘near miss'.
The Councils systems were offiine for 5 days and normal operations were interrupted for
several weeks which highlights the threat and disruption a successful attack would have on
Council operafions.

Council are currently progressing several actions to mitigate the Digital information/Cyber
risk;

o Development of Service Area Business Continuity Scenario Plans with a focus on
cyber security/disaster recovery and ensuring critical functions are operational;

e Implementation of additional security measures including multifactor authentication,
conditional access and modern authentication where possible and appropriate;

e Increasing User resilience though continual training, testing and remediation;

e Continuing to engage with and follow guidance from the National Cyber Security
Centre [NCSC) and avail of Active Cyber Defence tools from NCSC and supplement
with vulnerability and penetration testing, actioning recommendations resulting
therefrom where possible and appropriate;

e Working through lessons learned internally and by peers and other organisations 1o
confinually improve detection and response; and

« Madintaining robust change management controls.

6. Succession Planning and Talent Recruitment

Council has long term plans that are in place for the District including our ambitious capital
plan and the Belfast City Region Deal. It is imperative there is effective succession planning in
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place. Currently all Councils are finding it difficult fo fill Senior positions and skills gaps have
been identified in several service areas including capital works, procurement ond waste

management posts.

As we move forward there needs to be a stronger focus on attracting a more diverse pool of
talent to the Council and upskilling our existing talent to have adequate succession plans fo
fulfil vacancies at all levels including Senior Management.

Council are currently working in conjunction with the Local Government Staff Commission to
contribute to the regional Talent Management Strategy. Another solution is offering
apprenticeships across certain service areas. The first apprenticeships will be taking up posts

in Council in September 2022.
We propose over the coming year to take steps fo address the above matters to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the

need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Date
CHAIR

Signed
Date
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

on behalf of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES'
REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

INTRODUCTION

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit] Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government bodies to
prepare a remuneration report as part of the statement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance
Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012, which
came into operation on 1 April 2012,

Guidance and determinations on Councillors' Allowances applicable from 1 April 2021 were issued by the Department for
Communities on 8 March 2021 {Circular LG 07/2021). Detalls of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on

council websites.

Following local elections on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils for a four year term. Newry,
Mourne and Down District Council had 41 councillors in 2021/22.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined by
the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Executive

Management Team/Senior Management Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions' Code of
Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open

competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-ended.

INDEPENDENT MEMBER - AUDIT COMMITTEE

Brona Slevin is an Independent Member and Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The role is to help promote the highest
standards in the financial management of the Council and thereby ensure the accountability of public funds. This is a four year
temporary appointment from 15 April 2019 until 31 March 2023. A payment of £500 is paid per meeting (this includes
preparation time of £250 and £250 for the meeting)., plus travel and expenses. In 2021/2022 she was paid £6,500 meeting
allowance (at a cost of £6,624.58} with no travel costs claimed.
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The ftotal amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act {Northern
freland) 2011 and the Local Government {Payments to Councillors) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to councillors (audited information)

Allowance

2021/22

2020

/21

Total Allowances

Number of Councillors

Total Allowances

Number of Councillors

£ receiving the Allowance £ receiving the
Allowance

Basic Allowance 644,722 42 634,926 42
Special Responsibility 77.671 28 76,334 29
Allowance
Chairperson 20,165 2 20,165 2
Allowance
Vice Chairperson 6,293 2 6,293 2
Allowance
Mileage Allowance 17,905 24 7.096 18
Public Transport and 7.557 6 508 2
Other Travel
incidentals
Subsistence 1,581 150 4
Courses/ Conferences 4,465 8,175 é
Visits (registration &
joining fees)
Dependents’ Carers 1,590 1 2,283 1
Allowance
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 781,949 755,930

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2021/22 are published on the council website at
www.newrymournedown.org/councillors-ollowcmces—ond—expenses.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team

table provides deldails of the remuneration paid to senior employees:

/Senior Management Team. The following

Table 2: Remuneration (including salary){audited information]
Officers 2021/22 2020/21
Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in Total Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in Total
year Payments | kind (to year Payments | kind (to
equivalent in nearest equivalent in nearest
brackets £100) brackets £100)
where £'000 where £'000
applicable) £'000 applicable) £'000
£'000 £'000
Marie Ward
Clerk & Chief Executive 125-130 100 125-130 115-120 - 100 120-125
Michael Lipsett
Director of Active & 90-95 100 90-95 85-90 - 100 85-90
Healthy Communities
Dorinnia Carville 90-95
Deputy Ch_|ef Executive {95-100 full 100 90-95 85-90 B 100 85.-90
Designate year
{(From 01/02/2022) equivalent)
Roland Moore 45-50 50- 55
Director of Neighbourhood A {85-90 full ) 100 (85-90 full
Services . ) ) year year
(Until 02/11/2020) equivalent) equivalent)
Conor Mallon
Director of Enterprise, 85-90 - 100 85-90 85-90 - 100 85-90
Regeneration & Tourism
Jonathan McBride 70-75 70-75
Director of Ne'lghbourhood 85 - 90 B 100 85-90 (80 -85 full i 200 (80 - 85 full
Services year year
{(From 02/11/2020) equivalent) equivalent)

The role of Deputy Chief Executiv
can be assigned to any substantive Director role. As such,
the respective Director salary at the time of assuming this r
this role and should it become necessary for the additional

Director position for whatever reason, payment of this honorarium allowance will cease.

e is not assigned to any nominated Director position, but rather the additionai responsibilities
remuneration will be paid via an honorarium allowance, added to
esponsibility. The hanorrium will continue to be paid for undertaking
responsibilities of Deputy Chief Execulive to transfer to another
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Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive
Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team in the
financial year 2021/22 was £125k - £130k. This was 5.31 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £23,953.

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team/Senior
Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce (audited information)

2021/22 2020/21
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the £125k - £130k £115k - £120k
Executive Management Team/ Senior
Management Team
Median Total Remuneration £23,953 £23,080
Ratio 5.31 5.20

In 2021/22, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Executive Management
Team/Senior Management Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary

“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime, and any grafia payments.

Bonus Payments

Banus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate fo
the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. The bonuses reported in 2021/22 relate to

performance in 2021/22.

Benefits in Kind

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the empioyer and ireated by HM Revenue and
Customs as a taxable emolument.

Exit Packages for staff

The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, iogethe

compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2021/22 (audited information)

r with total cost per band and total cost of the

2021/22 2020/21
Number of Number of Total Total Cost of | Number of Number of Total Total Cost of
Compulsory Other Number of | Packagesin | Compulsory Other Number of | Packages in
Severance Package | Redundancies | departures Exit each Cost |Redundancies| departures Exit each Cost
Cost Band agreed |Packages in Band agreed Packages Band
each Cost £'000 in each £'000
Band Cost Band
£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 0
£20,001 - £40,000 0 ¢} 0 0 [¢] 0 C 0
£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 | 0 [} o]
£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¢} 0
£80,001 - £100,000 0 0| 0 0 [ Q [ [¢]
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0
£150,001 - £200,000 0 ! 1 160 0 0 0 [
Total 0 1 160 0] 0 C 0
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Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland) {the Scheme] which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme,
which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a "career average revalued earnings" basis from 1 April 2015.
Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year. Pension benefits
in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for
each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009. Pension
benefits in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and 3/80ths (tax-free
lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009. At refirement, members may give up some
pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump

sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillors have been able fo join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified to reflect the fact that
councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior to |
April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/4%9th.

The Scheme is funded by confributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to 1 April 2009, @ member's
contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration {except for those who were entitled fo contribute to the
Scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution rates,
determined by the whole-time equivalent rafe of pay, were infroduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the member
confribution rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for fiered confribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities in April each year in
accordance with the increase applied to a pension in payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2021, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contiribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
Main Section 50:50 Section
1 £0-£15,000 5.5% 2.75%
2 £15,001 - £23,000 5.8% 2.90%
3 £23,001 - £38.400 6.5% 3.25%
4 £38,401- £46,600 6.8% 3.40%
5 £46,601 - £92,300 8.5% 4.25%
6 More than £92,300 10.5% 5.25%
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Employers' contribution rates are determined by the fund's actuary every three years at the triennial valuation. A formal
triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 was carried outin 2019/20 and set the employer contribution rates

for the 3 years commencing 1 April 2020 as follows:

Table é: Employer Conlribution Rates

Employer Contribution Rate

Year
1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 19.5%
1 April 2021 - 31 March 2022 19.5%
19.5%

1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local
Government Pensior Scheme (Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulalions (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30
June 2014. Both sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus far.
However, the in-year pension coniributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2021/22 was £136,585.

The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2021/22 [audited information|

(From 02/11/2020)

Officers Accrued Pension at Real increase in pension CETV at CETV at Real increcse in CETV
pension age as at and related lump sum at|  31/3/22 31/3/21
31/3/22 pension age £'000
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Marie Ward
Clerk & Chief 5= 20-25 302 263 18
3 no lum sum no lump sum
Executive
Michael Lipseft 45-50 1.0-1.5
Director of Active & plus lump sum of plus lump sum of 887 831 22
Healthy Coammunities 75-80 {-1.0) - (-1.5)
Dorinnia Carville
Depuiy Ch|ef 20-25 1.5-20 265 235 14
Executive Designate no lump sum no lump sum
(From 01/02/2022)
Roland Moore
Director of
Neighbourhood - - 269 :
Services
(Until 02/11/2020)
Conor Mallon
Director of Enterprise, 5-10 1.5-20 83 0 13
Regeneration & no lump sum no lump sum
Tourism
Jonathon McBride
Director of 25-30 3.5-4.0
Neighbourhood plus lump sum of plus lump sum of 338 271 51
Services 20-25 3.0-35
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in

time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme.
It is @ payment made by a pension scheme or arangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transier the pension benefits they have accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate fo the benefils that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their
total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are
calculated in accerdance with The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) {Amendment} Regulations and do not
take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when

pension benefits are taken.

The redl increase in the value of the CETV

This reflecis the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due
1o inflation, contribulions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme
or arangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Chief Executive
28 September 2022
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Cedificate of the Chief financial Officer

| certify that:

[{e}} the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022 on pages 53 1o 56 has been prepared in the form
directed by the Department for Communifies and under the accounting policies set out on pages 57 to 76.

(b)  in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for
the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31st March 2022.

Chief Financial Officer

Date 28/09/2022

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounis will be approved by resolution of the Council/Committee on 22 September 2022.

<
Choirpersow .

Date 28/09/2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWRY
MOURNE AND DOWN DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

I have audited the financial statements of Newry, Mourne and Down District
Council for the year ended 31 March 2022 under the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements comprise the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves
Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting on the United Kingdom supported by UK adopted
international accounting standards.

I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described
in that report as having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory
requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2020-21, of the financial position of Newry, Mourne
and Down District Council as at 31 March 2022 and its income and
expenditure for the year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government
(Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the
Department for Communities’ directions issued thereunder.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) (UK). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
this certificate. My staff and I are independent of Newry, Mourne and Down
District Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Financial
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit
evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, I have concluded that Newry, Mourne and
Down District Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or coliectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with
respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of
Accounts other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration
Report described in that report as having been audited, and my audit certificate
and report. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information
included in the Statement of Accounts. My opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in my report, I do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this gives rise to a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, I am required to report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Department for Communities’
directions made under the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

e the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial
year ended 31 March 2022 is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which I report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Newry, Mourne and Down
District Council and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, I have not
identified material misstatements in the Statement of Accounts.

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you
if:

e in my opinion:

o the Annual Governance Statement:
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= does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21;

= does not comply with proper practices specified by the
Department for Communities;

= is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware
of from my audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report
to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o I have not received all of the information and explanations I require
for my audit, or

I issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005; or

I designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland)
Order 2005 any recommendation made to the Council; or

I exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21
of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial
Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view;

such internal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free form material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
assessing the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Chief Financial Officer anticipates that the services provided
by Newry, Mourne and Down District Council will not continue to be
provided in the future.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of
Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error and to issue a certificate that includes my opinion. Reasonable
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assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

I design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect
material misstatements in respect of non-compliance with laws and regulation,
including fraud.

My procedures included:

obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework
applicable to the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council through
discussion with management and application of extensive public sector
accountability knowledge. The key laws and regulations I considered
included the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Local Government Code of Audit
Practice.

making enquires of management and those charged with governance
on Newry, Mourne and Down District Council’'s compliance with laws
and regulations;

making enquiries of internal audit, management and those charged
with governance as to susceptibility to irregularity and fraud, their
assessment of the risk of material misstatement due to fraud and
irregularity, and their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged
fraud and irregularity;

completing risk assessment procedures to assess the susceptibility of
Newry, Mourne and Down District Council’s financial statements to
material misstatement, including how fraud might occur. This
included, but was not limited to, an engagement director led
engagement team discussion on fraud to identify particular areas,
transaction streams and business practices that may be susceptible to
material misstatement due to fraud. As part of this discussion, I
identified potential for fraud in the posting of unusual journals;

engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team
collectively had the appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to
identify or recognise non-compliance with the applicable legal and
regulatory framework throughout the audit;

documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of internal
controls in place to mitigate risk of material misstatement due to fraud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations

designing audit procedures to address specific laws and regulations
which the engagement team considered to have a direct material
effect on the financial statements in terms of misstatement and
irregularity, including fraud. These audit procedures included, but
were not limited to, reading board and committee minutes, and
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agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting
documentation and approvals as appropriate;

e addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of
controls by:

o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or
unexpected relationships or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and
inappropriate or unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions made in
determining accounting estimates were indicative of potential
bias; and

o investigating significant or unusual transactions made outside of
the normal course of business; and

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my
certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Newry, Mourne and Down District
Council in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005
and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement of Responsibilities of the
Local Government Auditor and Local Government Bodies.

Certificate

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Newry, Mourne and Down
District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

_oferxe 1Cee

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street
Belfast

BT7 1EU

30t September 2022
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accoerdance
with generally accepted accounting praclices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxaiion. Councils raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements: this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in
both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2021/22 2020/21
Gross Net
I re
Expenditure Gross Income Expenditure Gross Expendiiure Gross Income Net Expenditu

Service Expenditure Nofes £ £ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive 2 2,184,071 (463,191) 1,720,880 2,611,850 (1,890.495) 721,355
Corporale Services 2 19.327.914 {415.766) 18,912,148 12,919,546 (346,482) 12,573,064
Enterprise. Regeneration & 2 17,186,747 (9,184,614) 8,002,133 15746937 (6.463.797) 9,283,140
Tourism

Neighbourhood Services 2 29,990,980 (1,896,585 28,094,395 31,031,515 2,449,044) 28,582,471
i 2 17,209.327 {5.288.611) 11.920716 17,269,860 (4.280,518) 12,989,342

Communities

EpstiahsenicesiofSontiniing 85,899,039 (17.248,767)  6B.650,272 79,579,708 {15.430,336) 44,149,372

Operations

Other Operating Expenditure/ g 635,558 (777,350) (141,792} 2.790.271 (1,267,360} ).522911
income

Financing and Investment 9 3,482,654 1448.780) 3,033,874 3,443,066 (95,537) 3,347,529

Income and Expenditure

{Surplus) or Deficit on i
Discontinued Operalions

Share of Operating Results of 1 . A N
associates and joint veniures ’

90.017.251 (18,474,897) 71,542,354 85,813,045 (16,793.233) 69,019,812

Net Operating Expendilure

Toxation and Non-Specific ; (69.888.839)  (69.888.839) - (74915,733) (74915.733|
Grant Income

(Supius)/Beletionihe 90,017,251 (86.343,738) 1,653,515 85,813,045 (91,708,966) {5,895,921)
Provision of Services

{Surplus})/Deficit on
revaluation of non-current 11
assets

{7.968.814) {2.509.372}

Impairmeni losses on non-
current assels charged to the |
Revaluation Reserve

Surplus/|Deficit) arising on
revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets

Remeasuremenls of the Nel
Defined Benefit Liability 21 {24,649,000) 9,810,000

[Asset)

Share of Other
Comprehensive Expenditure
& Income of ossociates and
joint ventures

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (32.617.814) 7,300,628

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (30.964,299) 1,404,707



Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves heldby the
authority, analysed into 'usable reserves' (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxatier] and other
‘unusable reserves'. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the Council's reserves are broken down befween gains and
losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustment required to return to the
amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance
movements in the year following those adjustments.

General Fund Other Fund Capital Total Usable Total Unusable Total Council
summary Balances and Receipts Reserves Reserves Reserves
Reserves Reserve
£ £ £ £ £ £
Balance as at 1 April 2020 11,708,865 747,613 - 12,454,478 41,922,709 54,379,187
Movement in reserves during
the year
s 5,895,921 : . 5895921 5,895,921
provision of services
Oiher Comprehensive
. . . . .300, ,300,
income and Expenditure (7r3007525) (7.300.628)
Total Comprehensive Income
5,895,921 - - 5,895,921 (7.300,428) (1,404,707}

and Expenditure

Adjustmenis between

accounting basis & funding 9,778,230 - 9,778,230 (9.804,870) {26.640)
under regulations

Net increase before fransfers

to Slatutory and Other 15,674,151 . . 15,674,151 {17,105,498) (1,431,347)
Reserves

Transfers to / from Statutory

and Ofher Reserves (8.154.749) 8,154,749 .

Increase/ Decrease in year 7.519,402 8,154,749 - 15,674,151 (17.105,498) (1,431,347)

28,130,629 24,817,211 52,947,840

Balance as at 31 March 2021 19,228,267 8,902,362

Movement in reserves during
the year

Surplus/ [Deficit) on Ihe {1.653.515) . : (1,653.515) . (1,653,515)
provision of services

& eHeamprehansige . ; 32,617.814 32.617.814
income ond Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income (1.653,515) : 2 (1,653,515) 32,617,814 30,964,299

and Expenditure

Adjusiments belween

accounling basis & funding 9,383.657 [216,572) . 9.167,085 [9.167.085)
under regulations

Net increase before transfers

to Statutory and Other 7,730,142 (216,572) - 7.513,570 23,450,729 30,944,299
Reserves

Transfers to / Irom Statutory

and Other Reserves [15.808.275) 15,808.275

Increase in year (8,078,133) 15,591,703 - 7,513,570 23,450,729 30,964,299

35,644,199 48,267.940 83,912,139

11,150,134 24,494,045

Balance as at 31 March 2022
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Newry, Mourne and Down Distiict Council
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets
of the Council (assets less fiobilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categeries. The first
category of reserves are usable reserves, ie thosa reserves that the Council may use lo provide services, subject fo the need fo maintain
a prudent level of reservas and any statutory limifations on Iheir use. The second categery of reserves is thase that the Councilis not
able fo use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
Revalualion Raserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold
timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves staternent line * Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under

regulations’.

Note 315t March 2022 31st March 2021
£ £
Fixed Assets 11 194,519,563 186,642,457
Long Term investments 16 -
Invesiment in Associates and Joint Ventures . .
Long Term Debtors 15 80,351 115,864
Contract Assels - .
Contract Costs - .
LONG TERM ASSETS 194,599,914 186,758,321
Short Term Investments 16 . -
Inventories 14 575.385 507.890
Short Term Debtors 15 14,609,991 9,825,600
Cash and Cash Eqguivalents 25 24,545,212 16,224.381
Assels Held for Sale 11 - -
CURRENT ASSETS 39,730,588 26,557,871
Bank Overdraft 25 8.679 .
Short Term Barrowing 17 10.342,321 10,416,318
Short Term Creditors 18 21,035,112 13,204,270
Provisions 19 2,843,669 500.000
CURRENT LIABILITIES 34,229,781 24,120,588
Long Term Crediiors 18 - -
Provisions 19 2,568,346 3,178,207
Long Term Borrowing 17 59.365,236 63,707.557
Other Long Term Liabilities 21 54,255,000 69,362,000
Donated Assels Account 22 - .
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 23 -
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 116,188,582 136.247 744
NET ASSETS 83,912,139 52,947,840
USABLE RESERVES
Capital Receipts Reserve 26 -
Capital Fund 26 15.000,000
Other Balances and Reserves 26 9,494,065 8,902,362
General Fund 26 11,150,134 19,228,267
35,644,199 28,130,429

UNUSABLE RESERVES
Capital Adjustment Account 27 44,288,017 41,797.916
Revaluaiion Reserve 27 59,738,922 53,993.812
Pensions Reserve 27 (54,255,000} 169.362.000}
Accumulated Absences Account 27 (617,371) {479,663)
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 27 (886,628) (1,132,854}

48,267,940 24,817,211

NET WORTH 83,912,139 52,947,840
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Newry, Mourne and Down Dlstrict Council
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2022

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cos

shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operalin

h and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The statement
Q. investing and finoncing

activities. The amount of nef cash flows arising from operating activilies is a key indicator of the extent to which the aperations of the
Courcil are funded by way of taxafion and granl income of from fhe recipients of sarvices provided oy the Council. Investing activities

represent the extent fo which cash oulflows have b

een made for resources which are intended fo contribule fo the Council's future

service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicling claims on future cash flows by providers of capital

{ie borrowing) to the Council.

Note 2021/22 2020/21

3 £
Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the provision of services {1.653.515) 5.895.921
Adjustment for non-cash movemenls 25 19,069,966 16,505,093
Ll s sowen s
Net cash flows from operating activities 25 12,402,050 14,428,155
Cash flows from Invesling Activities 25 326.421 2,416,686
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 25 (4.416,318) {720.692)
Net increase or decrease in ¢ash and cash equivalents 8,312,153 16,124,149
Cosh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting pericd 16,224,381 100,235
24,536,534 14,224,384

Cash and cash equivalents ai the end of the reporting period
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s fransactions for the 2021/22 financial year
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2022. The Council is required 1o prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS). The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluaiion of certain categories of non-current assets and financial

instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

- Revenue from contracis with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods,
is recognised when {or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories

on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are

made.

- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or

paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is
doubiful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made
to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
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Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council has not acquired operations (or fransferred
operations under machinery of government arrangements) during the financial year.

The Council has not discontinued any operations (or transferred operations under
combinafions of public sector bodies) during the financial year.

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

As each of the legacy councils had substantially completed its Single Status, Job Evaluation
and Pay and Grading Reviews, Council has not acquired an opening provision for such
matters. As the staff of the former legacy councils and those transfering in from the
Department of the Environment's Planning Service are protected by the Transfer of Protected
Undertakings Act (Northern Ireland) 2006 (TUPE), Council has not sought to amend these
employees' terms and conditions of employment. Appropriate provision will be made for any
financial consequences of employees' terms and conditions as and when required.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly fiquid investments
that mature within the agreed time frame or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible fo known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management.

Contingent Assets

A confingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service

potential.
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Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not whelly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note fo the
accounts.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and peid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and are recognised as
an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made
for the cost of holiday entilements (or any form of leave, eg fime off in lieu) earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the
next financial year. The accrual is made af the wage and salary rates applicable in the
following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The
accrual is charged fo Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer's employment before the normal refirement date or an officer's decision fo accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, o a corporate service segment at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation
Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members {retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.
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The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates . etc, and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities.

The assets of the Northern Ireland Locatl Government Officers’ pension fund atfributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unqguoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities — current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

Service cost comprising:

Current Service Cost — the increase in liabiliies as a result of years of service earned this year -
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which
the employees worked

Past Service Cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements.

Within Financing and investment Income and Expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), —ie net interest expense for the Council,
the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the
passage of fime charged to the Financing and investment Income and Expendiiture line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is calculated by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability (asset) af the beginning of the period - taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability {asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments.
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Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

The Return on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from the
plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any
costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax included
in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined benefit

obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pensions liabiity that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contribufions by Scheme Participants — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due fo
payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution increases pension
due to the employee in the future).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments into the
scheme by the employer.

In relation 1o retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance fo be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according fo the relevant accounting standards. In
the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid o the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by

employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricied powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted
for using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’

pension fund.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS) Pension Scheme

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members {retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.
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Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identfified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have
a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

The Statement of Accounts may subseguently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues the certificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e.in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise fo a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of fransactions,
other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied refrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
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Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and
are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally

recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Ralance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for
the year according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive iIncome and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term
that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund
Ralance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

- amortised cost

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The Council's business model is to hold investments fo collect contractual cash flows. Financial
assefs are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments
are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie where the cash flows do not take the form

of a basic debt instrument.

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the
financial assets held by the Counclil, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the year in the loan
agreement.
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interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that
the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial
year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed
by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in

Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debits to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement.

Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has eniered into a transaction denominated in o foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are
recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure lineg in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instaiments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable

assurance that:

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been safisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by
the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to

the fransferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used fo finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Gronts Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

64



Xiv}

xv)

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by
the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected
that future econamic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adeguate resources being
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service
potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be
measured reliably as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the
development phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).

Intangible assets are measured inifially ot cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value
of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In
practice, no intfangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore
caried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset
might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts

Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula.

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations safisfied
based on the goods or services transferred fo the service recipient during the financial year.
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Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earmn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted fo
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same freatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited fo the Financing and
Investment income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result in
a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are
not permitted by statutory amangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.

The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts

Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Alowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there are
no fradable allowances. It is not a 'cap and frade' scheme since landfill allowances are noft
tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance

Sheet.

Leases

Leases are classified as leases where the terms of the lease tfransfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets

The Council as Lessee - finance lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured af the lease's inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The assef recognised is matched by a
liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added tfo the
carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry intc a lease are applied to writing down
the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are

incurred.
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Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property.plant or equipment — applied to
write down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing ond Investment Income and Expendifure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generaily fo such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not
transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaiuation and impdairment losses are therefore substituted
by d revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference

between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - finance lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
{i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the fime of disposal), matched by a
iease asset {long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:
a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease

debtor together with any premiums received, and
b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
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The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a
capital receipt. Where o premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance fo the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the
element for the capital recelpt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease
debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts

Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and amanging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its confinuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease 1o
fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure fine in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only
up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of ifs carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equioment or assets held for sale) is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal {i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the
Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are not charged to service segments.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's potential
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are inifially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price
b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it fo

be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed fo be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance lie it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Counclil). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.
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Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- Community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost
- Land, buildings, infrastructure and surplus assets - held at current value

- Vehicles, plant & equipment and other assets - depreciated historical cost

- Investment assets are held at fair value

- Heritage assets are held af historical cost and not depreciated.

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value atf the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are maiched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a
loss previously charged 1o a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into

the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the

accumulated gains),
b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying

amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged it the loss had not

been recognised.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property. plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assefs
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets} and
assets that are not yet available for use {i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

-Land: Land is not depreciated as it has an infinite useful life.

-Buildings: Straight -line depreciation over useful life which depends on the type of property
and use- it normally ranges from 10 to 50 years.

-Community: No determinable useful life and not depreciated held at nominal value.
Jnvestment: Held at market/fair value - Not depreciated

_Infrastructure: depreciation is based on a straight line basis using the remaining useful life of
the asset.

-Landfill Site: End of Useful Life

-Heritage Assets: These are not normally subject to depreciation and are held at either Historic
cost or insurance valuation.

-Plant and Machinery: Straight -line depreciation over useful life which depends on the type of
assel and ranges from 3 to 7 years.

-Vehicles: Straight-ine depreciation over 7 years.

-Information Technology: Straight-line depreciation 3 to 10 years.

-Assets Under Construction: Held at Historic Cost and are not depreciated.

-Intangibles: Software licenses and systems are depreciated over estimated useful life which is

normailly 3 fo 10 years.

Componentisation

Where an item of Propenty, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciaiion that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being fransferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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XXii)

xxiii)

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assetfs with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations
because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be held by this
authority in pursuit of our overall objectivesin relation to the maintenance of heritage.

The camying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment
for heritage assets, eg where an ifem has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where
doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accountance with the Council's general policy on impairment.

The Heritage Assets held by the Council include artefacts, historical furniture, civic items, Ross'
Monument, paintings and drawings.

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each finoncial year — where
it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a
lower settlement than anticipated is made}, the provision is reversed and credited back to the

relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to setfle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually ceriain that reimbursement will be received if the Council seffles

the obligation.
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XXiv)

XXV}

XXVi)

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund
Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into
the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the

expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept fo manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources
for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off
c. amortisation of intangible fixed assefs atfributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates fo cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from
revenue o contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement [egual to
either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Councll in accordance
with statutory guidance]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation
are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance [minimum revenue
provision (MRP]) or the Stafutory Repayment of Loans Fund Advances], by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for
the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a fransferin the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General
Fund Balance fo the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so
that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.
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xxvii)

XXix)

Value Added Tax

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Maiesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Fair Valve Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of ifs financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement assumes that fhe fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liakility, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
parficipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act

in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a
market participant's ability fo generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of uncbservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council’'s financiat statements are categorised within the fair

value hierarchy, as follows:
= Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or fiabilities that

the authority can access at the measurement date
* | evel 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directily or indirectly
* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires
an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change
that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code
also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied refrospectively unless
transitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures spanning

two financial years.

The implementation of IFRS 16 Leases has been deferred until 1 April 2024.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting palicies set out from 1a above, the Council has had fo make certain
judgements about complex fransactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in refirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries AON Hewitt is engaged fo provide the Council with expert advice about
the assumptions to be applied. The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are

sensitive to the assumptions used.

The calculation of the necessary financial provision for the capping and aftercare costs for the
landfill sites depends on a judgement around the appropriate discount rate to be used and
the number of years over which these costs are needed to be provided. The landfill provision
figures are sensitive to the assumptions used.
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Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Valuations of Land and Buildings are carried out externally by Land and Property Services (LPS).
in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). As at the valuation date, LPS
considers that the pandemic and the measures taken to tackle COVID-19 continue to affect
economies and real estate markets globally. Nevertheless, as af the valuation date property
markets are mostly functioning again, with fransaction volumes and other relevant evidence
at, or returning to, levels where an adequate quantem of market evidence exists upon which
to base opinions of value. This is frue of local property market sectors relating to each of the
asset types identified and valued. Accordingly, and for avoidance of doubt, our valuation is
not reported as being subject fo 'material valuation uncertainty' as defined by VP3 and VPGA
10 of the RICS Valuation - Global Standards.
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Slatements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2
-l Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government granis, rents, council
tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance wilh
generally accepted accounting praciices. It also shows how 1his expenditure is cllocated for decision making purposes between the
council's [directorates/ services/ departments]. Income and expenditure accounted for under gensrally accepted accouniing practices is
presenled more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2021/22 2020/21

Net Expendliure In Nel Expenditure in
Net Expenditure {he Comprehensive Net ExpendHure the Comprahensivey
Chargable to the Ad]ust ts | and Chargable to the AdJusiments Income and
General Fund Expendlfure General Func! Expenditure|
Statement Statement|
13 T E = 40 ¥
Cnief Executive 1718 401 (2.479) 1,720,880 718922 (2,433) 721,355
Corporole Services 14,685,621 14,226,527} 18,912,148 13.347.335 774.271 12,573,064
Enterprise. Regeneration &
Toursm 3,829,187 (4,172.946} 8,002,133 4112555 {5.17.585) 9,283,140
Neignoournaood Services 25.870,403 (2,223.992) 28,094,395 23,969,472 14,612,999} 28,582,471
Aclive & Hegilny Communilies 9,809,160 (2,111,556} 11.920.716 B.191,249 (4.798,073) 12,989,342
o o 00 0 0 809

Other Income and Expenditure (63.642,914) 3,353,843 (66,996,757) (66.013,704) 4,031,589 (70,045,293)

1,653,515 (15.674,151) (%.778.230) (5.895.921)

surplus or Deficit (7.730,142) (9,383,657)

Qpening General Fund 19,228,267 11,708,845

Surplus/ {Deficit) on General
Fund Bolance In Year (8,078,133) 7.519.402

11,150,134 19.228,267

Closing General Fund
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Councll
Notes to the Financial Statemenis
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2
b Note to the Expenditure and funding Analysis

This note provides o reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in

Reserves Statement.

Chargeable to the General fund to arrive at the amounts in

Adjustments between funding and Accounting Basis

2021/22
d e (o enera dfioa eq e o] ange fo O e » o O e o cta
£ £ £ £l St
Chief Execulive - 12,479) - {2.479)
Corporate Services 3937917 (8,137,000} (27,444) (4,226,527)
Enterprise, Regeneralion & Touiism {4,119.077) (53.869) {4,172,946)
Neighbaurhood Services {2.433,102} 209,110 12,223,992}
Active & Healthy Communities (2,094,755} - (16,801} {2.111,556)
Net Cost of Services (4,709.017) (8,137,000} 108.517 (12,737,500}
Oiher Income and Expenditure from the 4,758,843 {1,405.000) 3,353,843
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund surplus or deficil 49,826 {9.542,000) 108,517 - {9.383.657)
ond Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Stalement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2020/21

d = 0 enera dtoa ea = e o} ange 1o O » o Othe O otfaq
i = = e = RACEEk Sy | g T CE
Chief Executive {2,433} (2,433}
Corporale Services 5,352,621 (4,564,000} {14,350) 774,271
Enterprise, Regeneration & lourism 15.124,654) {45,931) - {5.170,585}
Neighbourhood Services (4,166,731} {146,268) (4.612.999)
Actlive & Healthy Communilies {4,778.128) - {19,945} - {4,.798,073)
Net Cost of Services (9.0156,892) (4.564,000) (228.927) - (13.809.819)
Olher Income and Expenditure from the
Expendijure and Funding Analysis 5,212,589 (1,181,000} - 4,031,589
Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services (3,804,303} {5.745,000) {228,927) - (9.778,230)
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Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments lo General Fund Bolances fo meel lhe requirements of generally accepted accounting practices, this column adds in deprecialion and img
and revalualion gains and losses in the services line and for:

i) Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assels and the amounts written off for Ihose assels.

ii| Fingneing ond investment income and axoendilure - the statutary charges for capilal financing ie Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue con
are deducted trarm financing and investmenl Income and expendilure as Ihese are nat chargeabts under generally accepted accouniing practices.

i} Taxation and Man Specific Grant Income and Expenditure - Copital grants ore adjusled lof incoma not chargecble under generally cecepled accou
praclices. Revenue grants ure adjusied from ingse receivable in Ihe year to those recelvable withol! conditions of far which conditions were satished {hr
the year. The Toxalicn and Men Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credifed with capital grants receivable in tha year wilhout condilions or for
condilions were salisfied in the year.

Net change for the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addilion of 1AS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expendilure and income:

For Services: this represents the removal of lhe employer pension contribufions made by the authorily as allowed by statute and the replacemenl wilh ct
service costs and past service costs.

For Financing and investment income and expendilure: the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

Other stafutory differences

Other statutory adjustments between amounts debited/crediled to Ihe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounis payable/recei
be recognised under stafute:

For Financing and investment income and expendilure the other statutory adjustments column recognises adjustments to General Fund for the fiming dif
for premiums and discounts

The charge under Taxation and nen-spiecific grant income and expenditure represents lhe difference belween what is chargeable under statutory regul
district rales and NDR that was prajecled fo be received at the start af the year and Ihe income recognised under generally accepted accounting proc

the Code.

Other nen-statutory adjustments

The reportable segments are based on the organisational structure of the Council comprising the Chief Executive's department and four directorates.
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Newry, Mourne and Down Dislrict Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2
I4 segmental Income and Expenditure (Cument Tear)

income and expenditure an a segmental basis are analysed below:

[ v Inferest|  Iiterest| Deprecialion| Malerial llems| Inferest in the| Income Tax| Materiol Non
External ‘Revenue| Expense _and|of Income and Profit or Loss of| Expense or| cash items
Customers with Other| Amortisation Expense Associotes Income| other than
Operating and Joint Depreciation
Segments of Ventures| ~ and
the Authority Accounted for Amonrlisation
by fhe Equity
Method
% ZYES £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive (36,356 - - - - 396,852 - - -
Corporate Services (371,187 - (8,776} | 2.059.581 555,083 4,769,237 - - 4,115,973
Enterprise, Regeneration & T {3.884.248 - - 1.820.831 1.785.210 - - 2,298,246
Neighbourhood Services [1.320.573 - - - 2,484,647 17,396,500 . - (54,518]
Active & Healthy Communii 11.497,197) - . . 2,242,691 5,560,974 . - [147.936]
Total Income Analysed on a
segmenlal basis {7.109,561) - (8.776) | 2,059,581 7,103,252 29,908,773 - - 6,211,765
Segmental Income dnd Expenditure (Comparative Year)
I D20
~ | Revenvetiom[ Revenvestiom| Inferesl] Interest] Depreciofion| Molerial Hemg|
) : s i b = AN 13 . - and ql‘{hcqme.uha P
-1 ttic : el
5 : = :
Chief Executive 5600 - 5 : - {794,063] = -
Corporate Services [264,779) - (3.867) | 2,243,888 473,379 4,663,203 - - 5,796,000
Enterprise, Regeneralion & T (3.217.546) - - - 1,775,802 3,754,773 - - 3,348,852
Neighbourhood Services (1,081.034] - - - 2,631,329 16,061,952 - - 1,835,402
Aciive & Heallhy Communi| [364.048) - - - 2,269,486 4,641,232 - - 2,508,641
Total Income Analysed on d
segmental basis (4,921,807) . (3,867) | 2,243,888 7.149,996 28,327,097 - - 13,488,895

Covid Funding

The folowing amounts of Covid Funding received have been included in ‘Material items of Income and Expense’ above:

2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Chief Executive (379,307) | (1.890,790) | HMRC Furlough Income

Corporate Services
Enlerprise, Regeneralion & Tourism

[1,906,000) | DfC Covid-19 Recovery Revilalisation programme

Enlerprise. Regeneration & fourism (3.515,000) . DfC Covid Recovery Small Settlemenis Scheme
Neighbourhood Services_[_ (581,3371 | (1.347.184] | DAERA Covid Funding

Aclive & Heallhy Commmunities {538.339) 1896,970] | DfC Covid-19 Community Support Funding *
Total [5.013,983] | [6.040,944]

In addition. Department for Communilies (DFC) Covid Funding Support of £1,753,.397 (2020/21 £5,606,427) has been included in Taxation and Non-Specific Grant |

detailed at Note 10a.

The amount of Covid funding received but not expended during 2021/22 has been transferred to Usable Reserves as oullined at Note 2éc (i) and {ii)

* DEIC Community Support Fund (Tranche 1 - 3). Access fo Food Partnership Fund, Financial Inclusion Partnershio Fund, Food & Essential Supplies Fund,
warm, Well and Connected Fund. Volunteering Supporl Fund, 2021/22 £143,729 (2020/21 £896.970).

* DFC Community Support Fund - Support io Community Development and Advice, Covid-19 Financial inclusion and Sociatl Supermarket Support Fund,
2021/22 £394,610 (2020721 £NIil).



Newry, Moume and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

3a

Expendifure and Income Analysed by Nature

Expendilure 2021722 2020/21

Naotes ;
Employee Benefifs Expenses 7 (35.348,952) {34,027,666)
Other Services Expenditure {45,612,653) (39,970,990}
Support Service Recharges .
Depreciation, amorlisation, Impairment 1 {5.572.992) (6.848,412)
Interest Payments 9 {3.464,281) {3.424,888)
Loss on the Disposal of Assets 8 . 1,522,911}
Other Expenditure {18.373) (18.178)
Total Expenditure (90.017.251) (85.813,045)
Income 2021/22 2020/21

Noles £
Fees, Charges and other service income 17,884,325 16,697,696
Interest and Investment Income 9 9.866 5,276
District rate income 10 58,720,377 57,609,682
Government grants and Contributions 10 11,168,462 17,306,051
Support Service Income - .
Gain on the Disposal of Assets 141,792
Other Income 438,914 90,261
Total Income 88,363,736 71.708.966
surplus or (Deficit} on the Provision of Services (1,653.515) 5,895.921

' Revenue from contracts with service recipients

The Council does no! receive maleriol revenue from contracts with service recipients.



Adjustments between an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year

required by statute to be excluded when determining the

Naotes

Amounls included in fhe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure stalement bul required by stolule fo be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General fund Balance for the year:

Impairments {losses & reversals) of non-current
assefs

Derecognition {other than disposal) of non-current
assets

Revaluation increoses/decreases taken to
Surplus/Deficil on the Provision of Services

Deprecialion charged in the year on non-curent
assets

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital
under statute

Carrying amount of non current assets sold

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment
property and intangible assets

Difference between finance costs calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs calculated
in accordance with statutory requirements

Net charges made for refirement benefits in

accaordance with [AS 19
Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC

and refirement benefits payable direct to
pensioners

Capital Granis and Donated Assets Receivable
and Applied in year

Capital Granis Receivable and Unapplied in year

Rates Claw-Back Reserve

Adjustments in relafion to Short-term compensated
absences

Adijustments in relafion to Lessor Arangements
Landfill Regulations Reserve Adjustment

Pravisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustment
Amounts not Included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement but required by
statute fo be Included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the
year

Statutory Provision for ihe financing of Capital
Investment

Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure

21

21

10
10C

27

27
27

{1,530,260)

7.103.252

635,558

(777.350}

5,572,992

3,249,026

(141,792)

14,546,000

(5.004,000)

(4,237,051)

137,708

(246,226)

4.493,000)

301,583)

7.149,995 6,848,412

7,964,479
2,790,271

(1.267.360) 1,522,911

10,721,000

4.976,000)

(6,705,499}

126,020

102.907

{5.826,000)

9.383,657 9,778,230

Nel fransters (fo)/lrom statutory end ofher

earmarked reseryes:

Capital Fund

Inleres!

From Capital

Other

Renewal and Repairs Fund
Inlerest

Olher

Capilal Receipts Reserve
Interes!

Olher

Other Funds and earmarked reserves
Interest

From Other funds

Olher

Unusable reserves

Capilal Adjustment Account

26

27

27

26

(15,000,000}

{808,275}

{15.000,000) 627,613 627,613
(808,275} (8.782.362) 18.762,362)

——— -
{15.808.275) [8.154.749)
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3l Cost of Services on Canfinuing Operations

'l General power of compelence

Prior to Local Government Reform on Ist April 2015, expenditure for special purposes was iimiled under Section 40 of the Local Government
Finance Act [Northern Ireland} 2011, This seclion was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Governmenl Acl [Northern Ireland) 2014,

Under Section 79 of Ine Local Government Ac! [Northern ireland] 2014, the Council has ihe pawer to do anything Inat individuals generally may
do. Councils have the power to do this with or wilhout chorge. The power of competence is not imiied to benefitling Ihe areo or its residents nor

is it limited by exisling pow=rs.

The actual expenditure under the power of competence amounied lo £0 during 2021/22 {£0in 2020/21).

)Y External Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following costs retaling o the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, cerlificalion of grant claims and other
services provided by the Councils external auditors

y £ E
Extemnal Audil Fees 71,500 68,000
Nafional Fraud Initiative Fees - 1,244
Other Fees 21,000 5.250

92,500 74,494

The other fees of £21,000 (2020/21 £5,250 ) were incurred in respect of performance audit services provided by Ihe appoeinted auditor.

Operating and leases
Council as Lessor

Rental Income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the currenl year amounts 10 £317.223 {2020/21 £284,611].

The fulure minimum lease payments due under non-canceltable operating leases in future years are:

31st March 2021

31st March 2022

L i 2ok N N R N T i - e ==, e P
Mot laler than T year 281,376 233,446
Later than | year ond no laler than 5 years 432,995 467,685
Later than § yeors 604,983 268,786

1.319.354 969,917

The assefs leased by the Council to third parties are included in the categories of Property. Plant and Equipment with carrying values ot

315t March 2022 31st March 2021

investment Praparties 3,670,002 3.290.002
3,670,002 3,290.002

Cuncil as Lessee
¢ leases (Council as lessee)

The assets acquired under these leases are carred as property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet al Ihe following nel amounts:

315t March 2022 31st March 2021

Olher Land and Buildings -
Vehicles. Planl, Furmiture and Equipment .

The Council is commilied 1o making minimum paymenis under ihese leases comprising settlement of Ihe fong-term liability for the interest in the
ity in fulure years while the liability remains oulstanding.

property acquired by the Council and finance cosls that will be payable by the authori
The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounls:



315t March 2022 3151 March 2021
A ). ¥ £ £

leases liabiliies (net present value of minimum lease payments);
Current

Non- Current .
Finance cosls poyablein lulure yaars 1971 5,297

Minimum Lease Payments 1971 5297

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following pedods:

Minimum tease Foymenis lease Liabilities
115t Morch 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 2022 315t Morch 2021
£ £ £ £

Nol later than one year :
Later than one year and not loter than five years 1,971 5,297 . -

Laler than five yeors = 5 = .

d Operaling Leases (Council as lessee) I =

The future minimum lease paymenls due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31t March 2022 31st March 2021
' 2 it . ! £ 2 ) £

Not loter than 1 year 106,158 155,892
Later ihan 1 year and no later than 5 years 397,049 346,846
Later ihan 5 years 1,511,270 1,317,902

2,014,477 1,820,640

The expenditure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Stalemenl during the year in reiation to these leases was:

2021/22 2020/21
Ja =t T L O SRCE W R T (Y = & B I 1 e ML
Minimum lease payments 133,117 124,002
Conlingen! rentals F =
Less: Sublease payments receivable -
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YAl Employee Costs and Member Allowances

-1 Staft Costs 2021/22 2020/21
i = - 2 . £
Salaries and Wages 25953318 25,502,530
Employers NIC 2,280,435 2,211,755
Employers Superannualion 5.113.812 5.058,963

Total staff costs 33,347,545 32,774,248

In addition. agency costs during the year amounfed to £2,001,387 (2020721 £1,253,418} and short term compensated absences during ihe yeor
amounled lo £137,709 [2020/2) £126,020).

The Council's currenl contribution rate 1o NILGOSC scheme is 19.5%.

Al las! actuarial valuation dated 31st March 2019 the funds assets meel 112% of fiabililies at that daie (2016-96%).

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fulltime equivalent employees

s} Average Number of Employees 2021/22 2020/21

FTE FIE
Chizl Execulive 14 14
Corporale Services 1 110
Enlerprise. Regeneralion & Tourlsm 156 169
Neighbourhoad Services 325 333
Aciive 8 Hecllhy Communities 229 245

835 a7l

Total Number

Fu!IAiimé numbzers employed = 751 769
Part-fime numbers employed 179 212
930 981

Total Number

14 senior Employees’ Remuneration

ol I R ) S e T WL T e £ S e e Ve At e R e S T &

£50,00! to £60.000 Fl 4

£60,001 1o £70.000 n 11

£70.001 to £60.000 . ]

£80,001 to £50.0000 2 5
2

£90,001 1o £100.000
E£100.001 1o £110.000
£110,001 to £120.000
£120,001 lo £130.000

Tolal Number 23 20

'] Members' Alowances

2021/22 2020/21
o » £ . £

[Salores . -

Basic allowance 644,722 634,926
Mayor's & Depuly Mayor's Allowonce 26,458 26,458
Specicl Responsibility Allowances 77,671 76,334
Cepandents’ carers allowance 1,590 2,283
Employer cosls 188,797 190,119
mileage j7.905 7.0%6
Conlergnceas and Courses 4,455 8,175
Trovel & Subsisience Cosls 9.138 4658
Miscellonecous Cosls 17.530 17,083
Severance Paymenls . -

Total 588,276 963,132



P Northemn Ireland CivilService Pension Arangements

As a result of Reform on 15t April 20135, siaff transferred from Ceniral Government to the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Civil Service
Pension Scheme.

The Norihem lreland Civil Service Pansion arrangements are unfunded mulli employs: defined benefit schemas bu! the Depariment for
Communities s unable 1o idantily Its share of the underlying assels and liabilitizs, The mos! up to dale acluancl valuation was carried out os al 31
March 2016, This valuatian is then reviewed by the Scheme Acluary and updated o reflect currant coneitions and rolied forward 1o the reporting
date of the DOF Superannualion and Other Allowances Resource Accounis as al 31 March 2022.

For 2021/22, employers' conlributions of £335.078 were payabie fo the NICS pension arrangemenis at one of threc rales in the range 28.7% to
34.2% of pensionable pay, based on salary bands.

The scheme's Actuary reviews empiayer confributions every four years following a full scheme valualion. A new scheme funding valuation based
on data as at 31 March 2015 was compleled by the Actuary during 2018-19. This valuation was used lo determine employer contribution rates for
the infroduction of @ new career average earning scheme from April 201 9. The contribution rates are sel to meet Ihe cost of ihe benefits accruing
during 2021/22 to be paid when the member retires. and not the benefiis paid during 1his period 10 existing pensioners.

No persons retired early on ill-health grounds as such the actuarial cost for employees for the early payment of retirement benefits was £nil.

[:3ll Other Operating Income & Expenditure
I surplus/Deficit on Non-Current Assels (exc! lnvestment Properlies)
2021/22 2020/21
L . £ )

Proceeds from sale {777.350) | (1.267.360}

Carrying amount of non-current
assels sold [excl Investment
Properties) 635,558 2,790.271

[141.792) 1.522911

)] Other Operaiing Income/ Expendilure

2021/22 2020/21
el e by

[Incom.e [ 5 %
|Expenditure | -

Other Operating Expendilure 2021/22

e e SN T U A e e U (T R ¢ A SR )
{Surplus) / Deficit on Non Current Assets {141,792) 1,522,911
Other Cpercling [Income) / Expenditure . -

(141,792) 1,522,911

[ 2 Financing and Invesiment Income and Expendiiure

[ Interest Payable and Similar Charges

£ 2

Lease/nire purchose inferess
Bonk nteresi . -
Govermnmeni Loan interesi 2057401 7,263,840 |
Caommerciol Loan inferest .

Oiher nteres (pleasa speciy)

2,059,281 2,243,888

I)] Interest and Investment Income

‘\

2021/22 2020/21
= AN A ST B3]
Bank Interest 8,777 3,867
Employee car logn interes! 1,089 1.409
NIHE Loan interes receivable - .
investment income on Fund Balances
Capital Fund
Repairs & Renewals Fund -
Other Funds - .
Other Investment income - -
9,866 5,276




I Pensions interest costs and expecied return on pensions assefs

2021422 2020/21
= —- £ A
Netinteras! on the nel defined
benelil iabiily (asset} 1,405,000 1.181,000
1,405,000 1,181,000

cperations

[:] surplus/ (Deficit) on tradin

g

2021/22 2020/21

£

£

Income from trading

Expenditure

{Surplus)/Deficit for the year

™ Income, Expenditure and changes in Fair Val

Income/Expenditure from '

investment Properfles:

£

ue of Investment Fropg

£

Income including renial income

{58.914]

160,261}

Expenditure

18,373

18,178

Nel income from investment
properfies

140.541)

|42.083]

Surplus/deficit on sale of
Investment Properties

Proceeds from sale

Carrying amouni of invesiment
properlies sold

[Surplusl/deficit on sale of
Investment Properties:

Changes in Fair Value of
Invesiment Properties

{380,600}

[30.000)

[420,541}

[72.083)

Financing and Invesiment Income

w1

2020/21

Interest Payable and Similar

Charges 2,059,281 - 2,059.281 2,243,888 . 2,243,888
Interest and Investment Income . (9.866) (9,866} - {5.276) (5.274)
Pensions interest cost 1,405,000 1,405,000 1,181,000 . 1,181,000
Surplus/(Deficil) on trading

operations . . . A ; %
Other investment income 18,373 (58.914) 140,541) 18,178 [60,251) [42.083)
Changes in Fair Value of

Invesiment Properlies - {380,000} {380,000) {30.000} {30.000]

3,482,654

(448.780)

3,033.874

3,443,066

{95.537)

3,347,529
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10

Taxation and Non Soecilic Grant Income

Ll Revenue Grants

e — <= o= WS =l Rl
e —— 1 2

Other Revenue Grants relate to Covid-19 Funding Support from Ihe Department for Communities.

Y] Revenue Grants - Unapplied

c

2021/22 2020/21
s St
General 15.178,014) | [4.994,125)
Other 11.753,397) | _15.606.427]
[6.931.411) (10,600,552}

The Council has no Revenue Granls Unapplied.

 apilal Granis and Donated Assets -

Applied

Il

&

Governmenl & Other Grants -
Conditions mel and appliedin
year

(4,237,051}

(6,705,499)

Govemment & Other Granis -
Transter from receipls in advance

Donated Assets - Conditions met

Donated Assets - Transfer from
donated gssets creditor

-] Capital Granis - Unopplied

e

{4,237.051}

(6.705,499)

2021/22

2020/21

I‘

—

ek

amerﬁr;ér:f & Ot-hef Grants -
Candifions met and not applied in
year

Other

Disrict Rates

i VAR )
Current year [57.534,054) | {56.346.735}
Finalisation - previous year {1,186,323] (1,262,947}
Transitional Relief - .
Finalisation - oiher yeors

158,720,377) [57,609.682)

Toxation and Non Specific Grant Income 2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Districl Rate Income (58.720.377) {57.609.682)
Revenue Grants [6,931.,411] {10,600,552)
Capilal Grants and Conlidbulions (4.237,051] 16,705,499}

|l
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Newry, Mourne and Dawn Distict Councll
Notes to the Financlal Siatements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

11 ¢ Bedpaity, ploniand equipmen], : ' eSS
Depreciation

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
- Buildings - 10 to 50 years siraight line;

- vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment - 3 fo 7 years straight line;

- infrastructure - as per Buildings;

-Informatlon technology - 3 to 10 years straight line;

- Inlangibles - estimated useful fife.

Revaluations

The Council cameas out o roling programma that ensures that ol propetly, plon! and equipmenls reguied lo be measured ol curen)
volbe i revalued ot leos! every five years. All valuafions were carled oul exlemally by Lend ond Praperty Senices. Voluations of lang
and buildings were cared oul in occordance with the melhodalogies and bases lor astimation sel out in the prelfessional stangords of
Ihe Royal Insiltution of Chartered Surveyors. Voluations of venjgles, plant, futnilure and squipment are based on historic cost adiusted for

depreciation

Non-operalional Property, Plant and Equipment (Surplus Assets)

The Council has surplus assets wilh a camying value of £3,501.751 ot 31st March 2022,

d Infangible Assels = y N e

The Council owns intangible assets which relate to market righls, purchased licensed software and a licence for a mountain bike site as
follows:

2021722
i E

Infangible Assels

Bdlcnce crstor} of year:

Gross carying amounis 5,291,745 5,066,074
Accumulated amortisation 2,002,581 1,566,190
Net carrying ameunl at start of year 3,289,164 3.499.884
Additions 271,916 225,671
Derecognition - Disposals {Cost} {217.009) .
Amortisation for the period {510,235) {436,391}
217,009 -

Derecognition - Disposals {Amortisation)
Other Changes

amount ot and !

3,289,164

3.050,845

Ml Larmyr

Comprising:
Gross camying amounts
Accumulated amortisation

5,346,652 5,291,745
2,295,807 2002.581
3,289,164

e Invesfment Fropaiies
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatement:

Invesimen! Properties 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

==k ; - = = ! £
[Renial Income from invesiment Actwilies 58914 €0.251 |
Direcl Operoling exoenses arsing from investment properfies (18,373) [18.178)
Nel goin/(loss) 40,541 42,083

The following table summaries the mavement in the Fair value of investment properlies over the year:

Investmenl Properties 2021722 2020,21
. & g

Balance al start af thie year 3,250,002 2.240,002
Additions - .
Disposals - -
Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments 380,000 30,000
Transfers to/ from inventories - -

Transfers to/ from property, plont and equipment 1,020,000

Other changes

3,670,002 3.290,002

luati for Prop

The fair value of the Council's investment property is measured onnually at each reporting date, All valuations are carried out externally.
in accordance with the melhodoiogies and bases for estimate set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered

Surveyors.



|}l Herltage Assels

The Councifs colleclion of “erirage Assets s reported 'n 7re Ba.ance Sheel al insurance vawation or miszoric cost. These assefs include
museurn orlefacts, works of art and civic items. Ross Monument 's a'so incloded which is situated between Rostrevor and Warrenpain

The following 1abie summarises the Heritage Assels held by 'ne Courcii

31/03/2022 31/03/202)

Hertage Asseh

& £

Artzlacls 531,452 531,452
Historical Furniture 51,935 81,935
Civic frems 45,600 65,500
413911 413911

Ross Monur-ent
459,858 155,853

Ponlings and ifavangs
Balance at end of the year 1,552,756 1,549,754

g Long-Term Assets - Leased Assels

| ] | V Equipment JOTAL
i === i ] i S T

Caost or Valuation
Al 1 Al 2027 364473 36.626 401,099
Addilions . . -
Disposals .

Al 31 March 2022 144,473 36,626 401099

Depteclation
Al | Al 202 364.473 36.626 401.09%

Disposals
Provigded ‘or vear - .
Al 31 March 2022 344,473 38.624 401.099

Net ook Value -

o e R g L = 1]}
i i i | =

Cost or Valualion

~ . Vehicies

Al Asel 2020 364,473 36,626 401.099

Additions
Disposals a .
At 31 Morch 2021 354,473 36,624 401,099

Depreciation
ALl Apel 2020 355.652 36,626 392,278

Disoosals

Provided lor yoar 8.821 8.821

Al 31 March 2021 364,473 36.626 401,099

Nel Book Value -

h Revaluation
A valoclicn exercisc was cariea oot by La~d and >roperty Services {LPS] os al 31 March 2022 on the Counci’s land ana ouilgings. Asa
resull, the value of lana and builaings have ‘nereased from £1743 ~ilion al 31 March 202! to £179.6 milion al 31 Marc 2022, In light of

COVIDi7. LPS has included o ciscicimer in :neir repor.

“valua‘iors of Land and 3uiidings a:e caried oul externally ty Land ana Property Services (LPS). in accordance with the merhodolcgies
and bases for eslimaron set out in *he professional standarcs of '~e Royal |nstituiior of Chariered Surveyors (R CS).

Tne panasmic and the measures “akan io Jackle COVIC-19 continue io al’ec) economies ond real asiate markets globaily,
~evertheless, as al 1ne valualion dale crocerly morkels are moshy fLnclioning again, with Irarsaction velumes ona other relevant
eviderce at, or relurring to, levels where an adeguale guanium of marke” gvidencea exisis upon wrich 1o oase oginions of value. This's
Irue of ine relevant local property markel seclors relating to each of fhe assels tyoes iaenlilied and valusa nerein.

Accordingly, ana for Ihe Gvoidance of deubl. our va uation 1s not reportea as being subject fc 'malanai valuaiion uncertainty' as
defnea by YPS 3 and VPGA 1€ of the TS Ve uaiion - Goba: Slandards.”
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IVl Copilal Expendilure and Copilal Financing

= e e )

The total armount of capltal expenditure

incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets acquired under

finance leases and PFi coniracts), together wilh the resources that have been used to finance il. Where capital expenditure is to be
financed in future years by charges o revenue as assels are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital
Financing Requirement {CF), @ meosure of the copital expenditure incured historically by the Council that is yet 1o be inanced. The

CFR is analysed in 1he secaond part of this note.

Capital Expendiiure 2021/22 2020721
£ £
Opening Capilal Finoncing Requirement 90.850.727 92,319,720
Capital Investment
[Preperty. Plant ond Equipment 1 5,844,925 4,198,869
Invesimant Properdies . .
Infangiole Assals 271916 225,671
Revenue Expendiiure Funded from Capital under Stalute
3,249.026 7.964.479
Invesimentis . 0
Olher (59,153)
Sources of Finance
Capital Receipls {777.3501 [1.267,340)
Government Granis and Other Contributions 10 14,237,051} {4,705.49%)
Transfers from Earmarked Reserves (216.572} -
Sums set aside from Revenue:
Direct Revenue Conlribuiions . .
Minimurn Revenue Provision {4,493,000) {5.826.000}
Closing Capilal Financing Requirement 90,492,621 90,850,727
Explanation of Mevements in Year 2021722
£ E
Increcse/(daciease} in underying need o banow {358,106} {1.,468,993)
Assels ocquired under leases E .
Assels acauired under PFI/PPF conlracts -
Increase/(decrease) in Capilal Financing Requirement (358,108) (1.468.793)

The Council has an ongoing programme of capilal works and the esiimated cost of the schemes is as follows:

Gross Cost Granl Aid

£

Schemes underway 51,528,316 31,168,164 20.360.152

Other Commitments I 82,486,489 | 27,568,669 54,917,820

Cenfral Stores 383,430 313,694
Olher | 191,955 | 194,196
575,385 507.890

Total
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Government Departments

Other Councils

Public corporclions and trading funds

Bodies exiernal lo general govarmnmean!

emoloyes car loans

Revenue Granis

Capilol Gronls

Interes! Receivable

Capital Deblos

Loarns and odvances

Finance lease deblors

lrode debiors

MIHE Loons

Othet

Impairment of loans and receivobles

Cantract Receivables

Tota! Long-Term Debtors

Short Term Debtors

Governmen! Deparimeanis

2021/22
£
1,978,010

2020/21
£
1.556.137

Other Coungils 60,307 130,197
Fubvic cerporalions and Irading funds - -
|Bodies exlemnal to general govemment

MIHE loons - B
Employee corloans 9,617 13,529
Revenue Gronls 2,743,584 1.885.744
Capital Grants 7,948,323 3,721,119
Interes! Receivoble - .
Cagilal Deblars - .
Value Added Tax 1,050,186 1,366,032
Eraowmems 230612 252,162
finpnce leasa debiors . -
Clher 149,279 324,580
Trade receivables 640,806 898,299
imparmani loss - Trode receivables (220,733} {322.201)
Conlract Recewvables . -
Total Short-Term Debtors 14,409,991 9,825,600
Total Debtors 14,690,342 9.941 444

ORI o i e i L]

The Councit has no investments.

Borrowings
-] Short Term Borrowing

Loors re-payaie wilhin one year

2021/22
£

10416318

Finance lease Principal

10.342.32}

Total Short Term Borrowing

10,342,321

10,414,318

Between 1 and 2 vears 4,091,304 4,342,321
Between 2 and 5 years 11.527.983 11,811,049
Between 5 and 10 years 17,625,695 18,597,126
in more than 10 years 26,120,254 28,957,061
Government Loans Fund 59.385,23¢4 83,707,557

69,707,557 74,123,875

Tolal Borrowing
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Creditors

"1 Short Term Creditars 2021/22 2020/21

£ £

Gavernment Departments 1,588,014 1,292,517
Other Councis 3,230,245 366,327
Public corporations and trading funds 10,002 722,360 |
Bodies external lo general government . .
Rales clawback

VAT . E
Remunerglion due to employaes 2,188,240 1,951,493
Accumulated Absences 617,371 479.663
Loan Inferest Payable = -
Copital Credilors 6,288,959 4.133,682
Receipts in advance 585,573 555,768
Trade credilors 6,451,912 4,180,494
Ofher 74.796 21,946
Contracl Payables .
Total Short Term Creditors 21,035.112 13,204,270

1ol Long Term Crecilors

Tolal Creditors 21,035,112 13,204,270

The credilor balance for 'Qther Councils' relates mainly to legal and waste cosfs.

[*] Payment of Invoices

The council has a farget, where no other lerms are agreed, of poying supplier invoices within 30 calendar days. During the year the
Council paid 17,440 invoices totalling £76,564.710.

The number of disputed invoices were 113

The Council paid:

15,442 (88%) invoices with 30 colendar doys farget;
3,042{17%} invoices within 10 working days target; and
1,998 invoices outside of ihe 30 day targel.

Provisions
Increase in Interesl cost
Balance as at provision Ulilised during Unused amounts and/or discount Balance as at 31
1 April 2021 during year year reversed rate changes March 2022
£ 5 £ £ £ 3
Landfill Closure 3.178.207 (281,373} {328,468} . 2,568,346
Staff Cosls - 2 F .
Restruchuring Cosls 500,000 2.343.669 . . - 2,843,689
Other . 3 E . . =
Total 3.678,207 2,062,296 (328.488) - 5,412,015
[Current Provisions | 500,000 | 2,343,669 | -] | -] 2,843,669 |
[Ltong Tarm Provisions | 3178207 | 1281.373) | 1328,488) | - - 2,548.345 |
Tofol 3,678,207 2.062.298 (328,288) - - 5,412,015
Comparafive Year
Increase in {nterest cosi Restated Balance
Balance as at provision Ulilised during Unused amounts and/or discount
1 April 2020 during year year reversed rate changes
£ £ £ £ £
Landfill Closure 2,935,488 314,116 (71,397} - 3,178,207
Stalt Costs 75,000 . {57,312} (17.688) H =
Restruciuning Costs 500,000 . - . 500,000
Oiher . S -
Total 3,510,488 314114 (128.209) {17.438) - 3,678,207

Current Provisions | 575,0C0 | - 157.312) | 117.688) | - 500,000
| -

|Long feim Provisions | 2935488 | 314,116 | 171.397) | | 3,178,207

Total 3,510,488 314018 (128.70%) [17,443) 3.678.207

Londfill Closure
The expected cost of landfill closure and aftercare costs of £2,568,346 is based on the percentage utilisalion of the landfil sites of both
Drumanakelly and Aughnagun and has been recognised os a provision. Aughnagun Landfill Site was closed as at 31st March 2015.

Dumanakelly Landfill Site ceased to lake landfill on 30th April 2016. Now that he sites have closed il will take a period of lime before
there will be a reliable frend for closure and aftercare cosls and gas generalion income.

Restructuring Cosls

The provision is for ‘Planning for the Future’ - a review of the directorale and management structures.



. Financlal Inshuments

Cal ries of Fi 1al ry

The following categories of financial instrument ore carried in ihe Balance Sheet:

financlol Assels oz al 31 Morch 2022

Nor-Current Current
Invesiments Deblors Investments Debtors

£ £ e

Fair Value through profit or loss . . . .
Amortised cost 80,351 15,539,421 854,631 16,474,403

Fair Value through oiher
comprehensive income -
designated equity insirumenis

Fair Value through other

comgranensve income - other - 9,005,791 . 7005791
Total Financial Assels . 80,351 24,545,212 854,631 25,480,194
Mon-Financial Assets . . 13,755,360 13,755,360
Total . 80,351 24,545,212 14,609,991 39,235,554

Debtors at amortised cost as at 31 March 2022

£ £
Trade Receivables . 640,806
frade Receivables - Impairment Loss . {220,733}
Govemmeni Departments . 278876
Soft Loans 39.941 3,281
£mployee Car Loans 9.307 9,617
Gas [ncome Deblor 31.103 136,467
Other - 6,315
Total 50,351 854,631

financial Assels os at 31 March 2021

Non-Current Current
fnvesiments Debfors Investments Debtors
£ £ £ £

Fair Value through profit or loss . . . S
Amorlised cost . 115864 10,222,828 1.187.173 11,525,865
Fair Value through other

comprehensive income -

designaled equity insiruments

Fair Value through olher

comprehensive income - other c 5 4.001,558 - 6.001,558
Total financial Assets 115,864 16,224,386 1,187,173 17527423
Mon-Financiol Assets . . 8,638,427 8.638,427
Tolal - 115.864 16,224,386 9,825,600 26,165,850

Debiors at amortised cost as at 31 March 2021

£ £
Trade Receivables - 898,299
Irode Recelvobies - Impairmenl Loss - 1322201}
Governmen! Depariments - 276,383
Solt Loans 43,541 3.281
Employee Car Loans 14,195 13.529 |
Gas Income Deblor 58,128 294,497
Other - 23,385
Total 115,844 1,187,173
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Financial Liabllies as af 31 Morch 2022

Non-Current Current
Borrowings Credilors Borrowings Creditors

£ £ £ .2

Fair Value through profit or loss =
Amorlised cost 59,365,236 - 10,342,321 13,835,086

83,542,643

Tetal Ainancial llabliites 59,345,236 - 10,342,321 13,835.086 83,542,643
Non-financial liabilities . . 7.200,026 7,200,026
Total 59,345,236 . 10,342,321 21,035,112 90,742,859

Financiol Uablliles as at 31 March 2021

Non-Current Current
Borrowings Credilors Borrowings Creditors
£ £ £ i

Fair Value through profil or loss . 3 .

Amortised cos! 63.707.557 . 10.416.318 9,635,989 83,757 864
Tolal financial liakiflies 63,707,557 . 10,418,318 9,435,989 83,759,864
Non-financial liabilities : . . 3,568,264 3,548,254
Total 63,707.557 . 10,414,318 13,204,253 87,328,128

Material soft loans made by the Councli

The Council has one soft loan but does not consider 1his 1o be material.

Employee Car Loans

The Council made loans for car purchases at 31/3/2022 lo 5 employees, including two members of the Senior Monagement Team, who

are in posts thal require them to drive regularly on the Council's business

Interest is charged on the loans at Bank of England Base Rale plus 1.5%.

2021/22
£

Balance at start of year:

Opening balonce 27,723 28,566
Nominal value of new loans

granted in the year 4,600 16,812
Fair value adjustment on initial

recognilion E .
Far value of new loans 34323 45,378
Loans repaid {15,400} {17.655}

Impairment losses
Increase in discounted amount .
Oiher chonges = .
Closing balance al end of year 18,923 27.723

Naminal value ot end of year 18.923 27723

Valuation assumptions

These loans have been valued al nominal value as ihey are not considered material to the Council.
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

2021/22
Surplus or Deficit on the  Other Comprehensive Income
Provision of Services ond Expenditure

Interest revenue

Financial ossets measured at

amerlised cost 8.777

Tolal Inferes! revenue | 8777 |

Interest expense | 2,059.281 | . I

2020/21
Surplus or Defici on the  Other Comprehensive Incomse

Provision ol Services and Expenditure

£ £

Interes! revanue
financial assets measured af

amortised cost 3847

Tolol inlerest revenue | 3887 |

Interest expense I 2,243,888 I . }

Falr Values of Fil lal Assets and Fil ial Labilities

Fair Values of Fl ial Assets and Fl lal Liabflifies that are not Measured at Fair Value (but lor which Falr Value Dlsclosures are
Requlred).

All the financial liobilities and financial assets held by the authority are classified as loans and receivables and long-term debtors ond
creditors and are caried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. The fair volues calculated are os follows.

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair valve

financicl Uabitities unt amount

£ £

Financial liabilities held at

amorfised cost [Loans] 69,707,557 70608353 | 74123875 82,144,382
Long-term creditors . . . .
PFl and |ease llabiities . . . .
Tolal 69.707.557 70,608,353 | 74,123.875 82,144,382

The maijority of the Council's perifolio of loans are held with the Government Loans Fund and cary a premature redempfion penalty it
the foans are repaid early.

Other financial assets and liabilities including trade receivables. irade payables and cash and cash equivalents are carred at cost as
this is a fair approximation of their value.



Fair Values of Fi ial Assets and Fll ial Uabilities that are not Measured at Fair Value

31st March 2022

Quoled prices
In cclive Other
markels lor significant

Significant
unobservable

{dentical 5 abl.
— 2ol inpuls (Levael 3)

assefs (Level inpuls (tavel 2)

¥)

Recurring fair value measurements
using:

Financial liabilifies
Financial liabiliies held at
amortised cost:
Loans/borowings - 70,408,353 - 70.608.353
Tatal - 70.4608.353 - 70.508.353

Financial assets
financiol assels held at omortised

cost

Soft loans to Ihird parties - 42,146 i 62,144
Other iinancial assets . - .
Tolal = 62,144 * 62.148

31sk March 2021

Quoled prices
In oclive Gthes
matkels lor significant
Identical obzervable
assels (Level inpuls (Level 2)

)]

Signl
unabiervable
inpuls (Lavel 3)

Recurring fair value measurements
using:

Financlol liabliifies
Financiat liabllities held at
omortised cost:

Loans/borowings i 82,144,382 . 82,144,382
Tolal - 8§2.144.382 - 82,144,382

Financial assetfs
Finoncial assets held al amortised

cost

Sofi loans to third paries 74,545 - 74,545
Other financial assels - . . -
Tolal - 74,545 - 74,545

The fair value for financial liabililies and financiol assets that are not measured at fair volue included in levels 2 and 3 in the table obove
have been arrived at using a discounted cash ftow analysis with the most significant inputs being the discount rate.

The fair value for financial liabilities and financial assels that are nol measured at fair value can be assessed by colculating the present
value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instrumens.

Other financial ossets including Irade receivables and cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of
their value.



Nalure and Extent ol Risks Arlsing from Financlal Insliuments

The Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

Credit Risk

Credit risks arises from deposits with banks and financial inslitutions as well as credil exposures to the Council's customers, Customers are

assessed loking inlo accounl fheir financial position, pas! experience and other iaclors, with individual credil limits being set in
accordance with parameters set by the Council, The provision for bad and doubliul debts reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of
non-payment by trade debtors and as such. Ihere is no further additional eslimated exposure to default and inability 1o collect.

Trade Debtors, inclusive of VAT, are analysed by age as lallows: £

Less Ihan three months 469,203
three 1o six months 34,372
six months fo one year 81,385
More than one yeor 265,128
Total 1,050,088

The above figures include trade debls relaling to cor parking, government departments and other councils disclosed separalely in
Nole 15.

Loss Aliowance by Asset Class - Assets Held al Amoriised Cos}

Lifetime expectled credit losses - nol' credit impaired:

Oparing Bolance as ol | Aprl 2021 322,201
Decrease {101.468]
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2022 220,733

The Expecied Credil Losses default rate for Council trode debt has been increased by a factor of 0.67 {2020/21 1.31) due to he
changing economic conditions as a result of the Cerona Virus. The factor takes accoun of prediclions by three leading credit raling

agencies,

There is no historical experience of default in relalion to deposits with banks and olher financial institutions, The Council manages credit
fisk by ensuring that invesiments are only placed with organisations of high credil qualily as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy.

Liquidity Risk
The Council manages ifs iquidity posilien Ihiougn the risk management processes set out in its annual Treasury Manogement Strategy

and Prudential indicalors, as well as ihraugh the active management of the cash flow position. This seeks to ensure fhat cashis available

when it is needed.

As the Council has ready access 1o borrowing from the Public Works Loans Board, there is no significant risk that it will be unable 1o raise
finonce to meet ils commitments under Financial Instruments. The maturity andlysis of financial liabifities is included at Note 17 and other

payables are due for payment within one year.

Marke! Risk: Intores! Rates

The Council is exposed to risk in lerms of its exposure to interest rate movements on ifs borrowings and investments, The Council is in
receipt of loans from the Departmen! of Finance however these loans are at fixed concessionary interes) rates hat differ from the

prevailing market rates.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has na financial assets or fiabilities dercminated in foreign currencies other than a bank account denominated in Euro. This
account is used solely to facilitate the CANN Prajac! [Collaboralive Action for the Matura Network). The Council does not consider this a
matefial exposure to loss arsing from movements in exchange rates
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F1RM Retiremen] Benelils
M Participation in the Northern reland Local Government Officers’ Penslon Fund.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers andl ather employees, the Council offers retirement benefits. Although
these benefits will nol actually be payable unlil employees retire, thi Ceurcil has a commitment to moke 1he payments that need to be

disclosed at the time that employees earn iheir future enliflernent.

Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local

The Council parlicipates in the Nerihern Ireland Local Government
y contribulions

Government Officers' Superannuation Committee. This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pa
into a fund, calculaled ot a level inlended to balance the pension’s liabiities with investment assels.

b lating to ret t benefis - C hensi and Expenditure St t Ch

9 P!

The Council recognises the cost of retrement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they are earned by

employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions,

However, the charge the Council is required lo make against dislrict rates is based on the cash payable in the year, and the real cost of
refirernenl benetits is reversed oul in the adjustments between occounting basis & funding basis under regulalions line, in the Movement

on Reserves Statemen?.

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Statement and 1he adjustments between
accounling basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movemenl on Reserves Statement during the year:

Nel cost of services:

Current service cost 13,141,000 9,484,000

Past service cost/gain] . 56,000

Gains and losses on seiflements or curtailments * :

Mel operoling expendilure:

nil Interest on net defined benefit Liatility (ossel] 1,405,000 1,181,000

Total Post-employ t Benefits d to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provislon

of Services 14,546,000 10.721,000

Moveman! in Resarves Stolement:

Reversal of net charges made for refirement benefils in accordance wilh iAS 19

and the Code {14.546,000) {10,721,000)

Aetual amount charged against the general fund balance for pensions in the

yeor:

Employan’ conirbulicns poyable fo scheme 5,004.000 4,976,000
(5,745,000)

Net adjustment to General Fund




The service cost figures include an allowance for administration expenses of £126k.

Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

2021/22 2020721

and Expenditure
£ 3

Liobility gains{{losses] due to change in assumplions 18,591,000 {48,043,000]
Liability gains/{losses) due to due to demographic changes 2,718,000 .
Liobility expenence goinsf{losses] arsing in the year {633.000) 1,987,000
Actuarial gains/{losses) on plan assets 3,973.000 36,246,000
Other . .

24,445,000 {9.5310.000)

/(losses) recegnised in Other Compiehonsive Income and Expondiluie

Assels and liabililies in relation lo retirement benefils

2021722 2020/21

Reconciliafion of present value of the scheme liabilities:
£ £

Baolanca as af | Aol 273,996,000 216,947,000
Current service cost 13,141,000 9,484,000
Inlerest cost 5,719,000 4,952,000
Conttinutions by members 1,623,000 1,601,000
Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
Actuana! gans/losses arising Irom changes in linancial cssumplions {18.591.2001 48,043,000
Actuaral goins/losses arising Irem demographic chonges {2.718,000) =
Actuarial goins/losses arising on liabiliies from experience 633,000 11,987,000
Other (il opplicoble) - .
Pas! service costsfigaing] - 56,000
Losses/(gains) on curtaliments -
Lianifities extingushed on setllemants - -
Estimated unfunded benefits paid {79.000] [78.000)
[Estimated benefils poid {5.049.000} {5.022,000)
Balance as at 31 March 268,675,000 273,996,000
0 onolp Q o) ole 020
Bolance as of 1 Aptil 204.634,000 163,140,000
Interast Income 4,314,000 3,771,000
Centributions by members 1,623,000 1,601,000
Coniributions by emgloyer 4,925,000 4,898,000
Conlribulions in respect of unfunded benelils 79.000 78,000
|Remeasurement gain/fioss} 3,973.000 36,246,000
|Assets dislibuled on selliements - -
Unlunded benefils poid {79.0G0} {78,000)
ﬁems oaid (5.049.0C0} (5.022.000}
214,420,000 204,634,000

Balance as at 31 March
The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the ossefs underlying the cument

invesiment policy, Expecled yields on fixed interest investments are bosed on gross redempfion yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expecied relumns on equily investments reflect long-lerm real rales of return experienced in the respective markets,

The actual return on scheme assets in 1he year was a gain of £8.3m {2020/21 gain of £40m),

Fair Value ol Plan Assels 1/22 2020/2)

£ {3
Equity investmants 87,054,520 94,745,542
Bonds 83,194,960 73.054.338
Proporty 23,371,780 18,212,426
Cash 13,294,040 10,845,602
Other 7.504.700 7.776,092

234,420,000 204,634.000

|

The above asset values are at bid value as required by IAS 19,
Details of esiimates made by the Fund Manager when assessing the fair values of plan assels

The amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for property occupied by the Council was ENil.
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The Council's share of the Net Penslon Liability (included In the Balance Sheet):

Nel Assol/{Liabiiily)

'l Schame History
Analysis ol scheme assels and liabiliies

Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme

2021/22
£
214,420,000

Fair Value of Employer Assels 214,420,000 204,634,000

Present value of funded defined benelit obligation {267,699.000) {272.911.0001

Pension asset/{liabilily) of Funded Scheme [53,279.000) {68,277.000]

Prasant Value of unfunded defined benefit cbligation 976.000) {1,085,000)

Other movement in Ihe ligbilily {asset) (if applicable] .

Net asset/(liabllity) arising from the defined benefit obilgation (54,255,000} 169.362,000]

Amount in ihe Bolance sheet:

Liabilties {268.675.000) {273,996.000)

Assels 214,420,000 204,634,000
(49:342.000)

2020/21
E

204,634,000

Present Value of Delined Benefit Cbligation

(268,675,000}

1273.996000) |

in the Scheme

Amouni iecognised in Other Comprahensiva Income and
Expenditure:

(54,255,000}

2021722
£

2020/21
£

(69.362.000)

Actuarial gains/flosses) 20,676,000 146.056,C00)
Expected Return on Plan Assets 3.973,000 36,246,000
Increqie/{decreose) in irecoverable surplus from membership fall and olher

factons -
Remeasurements recognised in Olher Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 24,649,000 {9,810,600)
Cumulative actuaral gains and losses 7244000 {15.405.C00}
History of experience qains and losses:
Exoeﬂenca gains and {lassas| on atsals . .
[Experience gains and {losses| on hiablities 633,000 {1.987.000)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments thot the authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The tolal liability of
£269m has a substanlial impac! on the net worth of the Council as recarded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a net liabilily of £54.3m

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial posilion of the Council remains healthy. The deficit on
the Norihern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working

life of employees, assessed by the scneme actuary.

Anclysis ol projecied amounl to be charged fo |he Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement tot tho year o 31 Maich

2023

31/03/2023 31,/03/2023
£
Frajected cument cost 12,281,000 89 8%
Mel interes! on the net delined benafil liakility {asset] 1,394,000 10.2%
Post service cost - 0.0%
Gains and losses on seftlements of curldgiments 0.0%

The total contributions expected to be made 1o the Northern Ireland Local Govermnment Officers' Pension Fund by the council in the year

to 31 March 2023 is £5.2m.

History of experience gains ond losses

The acluarial gains/losses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2021/22 con be analysed inlo the following categories,

measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2021.

Experence {geins and [losses) on Assels

2021/22

Z

2020/21

%
0.00%

[Exserience gons ond jlosses) on Liobililies | |

-0.24%

0% |
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L Basis lor eslimaling assels and hiabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an acluariat basis using the projecied unit method, an eslimate al

i the pensions thal will be payabie in
the fulure years dependent on assumplions about mortality rates, salory levels, efc. The Council's Fund liabilities have been assessed by
Aon Hewitt Limiled, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being bosed on data pertaining to the latesi full
valuation of 1he scheme as al 31 March 2022.

Equity investmanty 40,467 46.3%
Bohds 3BER 35.7%|
Property V0.9% 8.59%
Cash 637 53%
Ciher 3.5%) 3B8%
Mortolity H

Langevily al 45 cumenf pensoners Years Yeors

Man 218 217
Women 250 25.1
Longevity ol 85 for fulure pensonent

Men 3.2 233
Women 26.4 26.5
inllalioniPenson Increase Raole 3.00%) 2.70%
P::cw Incregse Rate 4.50% 4.20%
Expected Relum on Asels 0.00% 0.00%
Discount Rale 2.70% 2.10%
Pension gocounts reveluation role 3.00%| 2.70%

Prnsion Assumplions Sensifivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these finoncial statements are sensifive to the assumptions used,

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefir obligation as at 31 March

2022 is set out below.

in each case, only the assumption noted below is altered:; all other assumplions remain the sa
above.

Fu asion o nefll

me and ore summarised in Ihe disclosure

Discount Rate Assumption

Adjustment 'o discounl rale +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Present value of the lotal abligation 262,613,000 272,785,000
% change in the cresent value of the total obligation 1.90% 1.90%
Projecied service cost 11,876,000 12.699.000
Appraxmaote % change in ¢ 1 sarvice cost -3.30% 3.40%
inm of General Increase In Salarles

Adjusiment 1o solary increose rale +0.1%p.a. «0.1%p.0.

Presant value ol Ihe lolol obigotion 268,770,000 266.628.000
% change in Ihe sresent volue of the tolal obiig 0.40% 0.407%
Piojected service cost 12,281,000 12.281.000
Approdmale & change in projected service cost 0.00%| 0.00%
Rafte ol | o Pensions In Pay t and d Pension A phi

Adjusiment to pension Increcse rale +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.0.
Presant value of the lotol obigalion 271,714,000 263,684,000
= change N ihe eresen! volue of the lolal akiigation 1.50% -1.50%
[Projecied service cost 12,699,000 11,876,000
Appronmole = change in projected sarvice cost 3.40%! -3.30%
L

Post Refl 1 Mortalily A pfi

Adnslmant to mortality age raling assumption® -1 Year +1 Year
{Presant volue of tre tolol obiigation 277.068.000 258,330,000
% chonge in the present value of the fotal abigation 3.50% -3.50%
Proected service cosf 12,772,000 11,802,000
Appiosmale % change in progcied ssvice cosl 4.00% -3.90%

* A rating of +1 year means thol members are assumed io follow the mortality patlern of the base table above for an individual that is |

year older than thot.
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'l Mojor cotegories of plan assels o3 peicentage of lolal plan assels

The Northern Ireland Local Government Oificers' Pension Fund's assels consist of the following categories, by proportion of ihe total
assets held:

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Eqily invesiments 40.60% 46.30%
Government Bonds 24.10% 23.60%
Corporate Bonds 14.70% 12,107
Progearty 10.90% B.90%
Cash 6.20% 5.30%
Ofher 3.50% 3.80%]
Total 100.00% 100.00%

™| Northern Ireland Civll Service Pensian Arrangements

The Northem Ireland Civil Service Pension arangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the Council is
unable 1o identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up lo date acluarial valuation wos carried out as at
31/03/2019. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolted forward to the
reporting dale of the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2022,

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is a porfion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were contracted out of the siate
pension prior fo & April 1997. At preseni lhere is an inequality of benefils between male and female members who have GMP. Allhough
lhe Government intends that GMP should be equalised, ot present it is not clear how this equalisafion will be implemented. In July 2014
the Government stated an intenticn 1o develop fully consicered proposals ond 1o pubish guidance when ths work is completed, but no
lorge! date was given. The impaci of cny liobilities relating to the Counci is therafore uncertain and no provision has been made in
ihese financial statements.

Oonated Assely Account

The balance of the Donated Assels Accounl represents donalians received Ihat have yet to be recognised as income, as they have
condilions attached 1o them, which wili require the donated assets to be returned, il conditions are not mel. During the year the Councit
had no Donated Assels and the balance on the Donated Assels Account was £Nil af 31sl March 2022 {31/3/202) £Nil).

Capital Granis Received in Advance

The Council has no capital grants received in advance.

'] Contingent Liabililies
The Arc 21 Joint Committee has with tha approval of their paricipent Councils, entered info o Contingant Liability undertaking w#ith the
bidding consorlium in the procurement for the Residual Waste Treatment Project and Newry, Mourne and Down District Council has
agreed the legacy Down District Council's share of the conlingent liability. Poyments made if any in accordance with this undertaking
will be funded by the parficipating Councils. No further information on this agreement can be disclosed due to the commercial
sensitivity of the procurement process. In addition to the above, The Council is ane of the parties fo the successful legal action {October
2020), taken against HMRC, that charges paid since 2006 by members of the public for access to sporis, recrealion and leisure facilifies
provided by NI Councils were outside the scope of lhe VAT regime and that the VAT should be repaid. The Council undersiands that
HMRC has oppealed the judgement, the oulcame of which will be reported to the Council in due course.

Ll Conlingent Assels

The Council is one of the parties In the successful legal aclion (October 2020), taken against HMRC, that charges paid since 2006 by
members of the public for access to sports, recreotion and leisure faciities provided by NI Councils were oulside the scope of the VAT
regime and that Ihe VAT should be repaid. The Council understands that HMRC is considering the implications of Ihe judgement and the
oulcome of which will be reported lo the Council in due course, An asset is not included within the Statement of Accounls, as the
amount of the asset cannol be deemed virually certain.
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

VI3l Other cash flow disclosures
If] Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment fo surplus or deficit onthe provision of services
for noncash movements Notes 2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Depreciation 11 7.103,252 7,149,995
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) 11 (1.150,260) (271,583)
Amorhisation (included with depreciafion above| - -
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories [67,495) 40,899
[Increase]/Decrease in Deblors (5.082,974) {1.554,945]
Increase/(decrease) in impairment provision for bad debts (101,468) (80,330)
Increase/{Decrease) in Creditors 6,837,545 2,488,914
increase/[Decrease) in Interest Creditors - -
Paymenis fo NILGOSC 20 9,542,000 5,745,000
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 8 635,558 2,790,271
AUC/WIP written oif o Net Cost of Services 11 - 59,153
Confribufions to Other Reserves/Provisions 1,733,808 167,719
Movement in value of investment properties-included
above in Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) {380,000) {30,000)
Amounis posted fo CIES from Donated Assefs Account 21 - -

19,069,966 16,505,093

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the

provision of services that are investing and financing 2021/22 2020/21

Purchase of short-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) - -
Proceeds from shor-term {not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes

investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) - -

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and

infangible assets (777,350) (1.267,360)

Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant

income” (4,237,051) (6,705,499)
(5.014.,401) (7.972.859)
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpases of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and short
term deposits and investments (considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the reporfing period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the

related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
£ £ £
Cash and Bank balances 3,533,681 2,918,093 87,305
Short Term Deposits {considered to be Cash Equivalents) 21,011,531 13,306,288 779,891
Shorl Term Investments [considered to be Cash Equivalents) - - -
Bank Overdraft (8,679) - [766.961)
24,536,533 16,224,381 100,235
C Q » ate e Opera g A e 0 020
The cash flows from operating aclivities include: £ £
Interest received (9,866) (5.276)
Interes! paid 2,059,281 2,243,888
2,049,415 2,238,612
| Cash flows from Investing Activities 2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible assets (5,123,544} (4,709,551}
Furchase ol Short Term Investments (nof considered fo be
cash equivalents) - -
Purchase of Long Term Invesiments - -
Other Payments for Investing Acfivities > =
Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, invesiment property and
intangible assets 777.350 1,267,360
Proceeds from Shorl Term Investments (not considered to be
cash equivalents) - -
Proceeds from Long Term Investmerits - -
Capilal Granis and Contfributions Received 4,672,615 5,858,877
Other Receipis from Invesiing Activilies C =
326,421 2,415,686

Net Cash fiows from Investing Activities

I Ca O O a g A e

£ £
Cash Receipls from Short and Long Term Borrowing - 4,000,000
Other Receipts from Financing Activities - -
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a lease and
on-Balance Sheet PFl contracts % (4.172)
Repayment of Short and Long Term 3orrowing (4.416,318) (4.716.520)
Other payments for Financing Activities - :
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities (4,4156,318) (720,692)
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Usable Reserves
Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assefs which have not yet been used to

finance capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited fo the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
part of the gain/loss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Receipfs
Reserve. The reserve is written down when resources are applied fo finance new capital expenditure or set aside to
reduce an authority's capital financing requirement {or used for other purposes permitted by statute).

Capital Receipis Reserve Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £

AL 1 Aprl - :

Movement

Disposal of Non-Current Assels/Capital Sales 777,350 1,267,360

Capilal Receipls used to finance capifal expendilure 3,11 (777.350) {1,267.360)

Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act NI} 1972, however this section of the act

was repealed under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothern Ireland) 2011.

Capital Fund Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £

At T April - 627,613

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General

Fund 15,000,000 (627,613}

At 31 March

Other Balances & Reserves

15,000,000

Other Balances & Reserves Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£ £

At 1 April 8,902,362 120,000

Transters between statutory & other reserves & the General 4 808,275 8,782,362
Transfers belween Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & 12 (216,572} -

9.494,0465 8,902,352

At 31 March

(i). Election Reserve - this reserve is used o equalise (smooth) the cost of elections by building up a fund to cover the
costs of future elections by making contributions, as and when required, to the reserve. The balance at 31/3/22 is

£400,000 (31/3/21 £209,500).

(ii). Covid Funding Reserve - the Department for Communities allocated funding to Councils to alleviate the impact
of exceplional losses and costs incurred or estimated to be incurred as a consequence of Covid-19. This reserve was
created to ring-fence the unspent funding. The balance at 31/3/22 s £1,753,397 {31/3/21 £2,459,033).

(iii). Covid Support Granis Reserve - the Department for Communities issued a range of Covid support grants during
the year ended 31st March 2021 for Revifalisation and during the two years ended 31st March 2022 for Community
Support. This reserve was created to ring-fence the unspent funding. The balance at 31/3/22 is £163,576 (31/3/22

£2,233,829).

(iv). Covid Revitalisation Reserve - this reserve has been created to assist with the revitalisation of the District post-

Covid. The balance at 31/3/22is £1,412,091 (31/3/21 £1,750,000}.

(v). Economic Recovery Reserve - this reserve has been created to assist with the economic recovery of the District

post-Covid. The balance at 31/3/22 is £2,250,000 (31/3/21 £2,250,000).

(vi). Covid Recovery Small Settlements Regeneration Reserve - the Department for Communities issued funding
towards the Council's Covid Recovery Small Settlements Regeneration Programme in March 2022. The balance at

31/3/221s £3,515,000.

1
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General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is

shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

General fund Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
1Y £
At 1 April 19,228,267 11,708.865
Applied Copital Grants 10,12 {4.237,051) (6.705,499)
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year - =
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 - -
Depreciation and Impaimment adjustment 4 5,572,992 6,848,412
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4 (4.493,000) {5.826,000)
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
4,12 3,249,026 7,964,479
Surplus/({Deficil] on fhe Provision of Services CIES (1.653.515) 5.895.921
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the
General Fund 4 (15.808,275) | (8,154,749)
Net movemenis on Pension Reserve 4,2 9,542,000 5,745,000
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 3,4,11,23 (141,792) 1.522,211
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 137,708 126,020
Other Movemenis (246,226) 102,907
11,150,134 19,228,267

At 31 March



Unuseable Reserves

Il Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those

assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings

from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basis.

The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction

and subsequent costs.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Invesiment Properties and gains recognised on donated

assefs that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008, the

date that the Revaluation Reserve was created 1o hold such gains.

Capital Adjustment Account Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £

At 1 April 41,797,916 44,870,973
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 4,237,051 6,705,499
Unapplied Capital Grants fransferred to CAA in year - .
Direcl Revenue Financing 4,12 - -
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 11 (5.572,992) (6,848,412)
Stalulory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4,12 4,493,000 5,826,000
Net Revenue expendilure funded from Capital under statute 4,12 (3.249,026) (7,964,479)
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capilal Sales 4,11 (635,558) (2,790,271)
Capital Receipts used fo finance capifal expenditure 4,12 777,350 1,267,360
Other Movements 2,223,704 731,246
Transiers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance capital expenditure 12 216,572

44,288,017 41,797,916

Af 31 March

[y Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumuiated since 1 April 2008, the date the reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards or downwards) of individual
assets. All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the
Provision of Services are mirmored in Other Comprehensive income and Expenditure. Itis a fundamental principle of
this account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised, the balance

held on the Revaluation Reserve is written off ta the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation Reserve Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£ £
Al 1 April 53,993,812 52,242,326
Revaluation & impairment il 7.968,814 2,509,372
Other Movements (2,223,704) (757.886)
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I4 Pension Reserve

Pension Reserve Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £
At 1 April 169.362,000) [53,807,000)
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4,21 {9.542,000) (5.745,000)
Revaluation & Impairment 21 24,649,000 (9.810,000)

At 31 March

(54,255.000)

(69,362,000)

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the fiming differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-

employment benefits in the Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement as benefits are e

arned by employees

accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and

investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs

However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer's
contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance
on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits eamed by past and current employees
and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements wilt ensure that funding will

have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

l:] Accumulatied Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund

balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g.

staff annuat leave

entitlement carried forward at the end of the financial year. Statutory arangements are expected to require that the

impact on the General Fund is neutralised by fransfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

Accumulated Absences Account Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £

At 1 April (479.663) {353,643

Difference between finance and other costs and income

calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (137.708) (126,020)

At 31 March (617.371) (479.663)

Y Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rate Reserve covers the arrangement, put in place by the Department under its amendment
to the 2017/18 accounts direction (see DfC circular 17/18), to allow for mitigation of the costs not allowed for by
Councils who had adopted the HM Treasury Central Government discount rate for long-term provisions such as

Landfill costs.

Subject to agreement with the Department, this arrangement allows a council to spread the cost of the impact of

discount rate changes over a period of not more than 6 years.

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £

At 1 April (1,132,854) (1,029,947}

Difference between finance and other costs and income

calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 246,226 (102,%07)

Other Movements - -

At 31 March (886,628) (1.132,854)



p1. Wl Significant Trading Operations

The Council considers its only significant frading operation to be the provision of car parking facilities. The results for
this are disclosed in Note 2, namely income of £550,629 and costs of £378,402.

In deciding whether a trading operation is significant the Council takes both financial and non-financial criteria into
account.

Financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are:
- the magnitude of each individual frading operation’s turnover.

Non-financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are:

- the importance of each individua! frading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Council targets and
improving performance.

- the exposure of the Council to service reputational loss risk by providing the service

- whether the provision of the service is likely to be of inferest to the Council’s key stakeholders and their needs.

A2l Agency Services

1. Newry BID Company Lid - Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) were an initiative established through the
Department for Communities which allow town centres to establish action plans to bring forward additional
initiatives, services and projects under a BID plan. Rafe paying businesses within the defined BID area then vote
whether to accept the plan or not. If the BID is approved by a maijority of the ballot received an additional BID levy is
then invoiced to all businesses within the BID area to implement the agreed plan. The Council provides invoicing
and debt collection services to Newry BID Company Ltd. During the year the Council raised invoices on behalf of the
company amounting to £356,435. Payments were made fo the company of £215,000. The company also reimburses
the Councils reasonable charges and expenses which amounted 1o £6,067 for the financial year under review. The
balance outstanding from the BID company’s debtors amounted to £436,734 at 31st March 2022. This resulted in a net
amount of debt held by the Council on behalf of the company at 31st March 2022 of £62,270, this balance is
included in Short Term Creditors. No transactions other than the charges noted previously have been reflecied in the
Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement.

2. C.AN.N. is the abbreviation for Collaborative Action for the Natura Network. The Group consists of eleven project
partners. Agri-Food and Biosciences Institute, Argyll and the Isles Coast and Countryside Trust, Armagh City, Banbridge
and Craigavon Borough Council, East Border Region Ltd, Golden Eagle Trust, Institute of Technology Sligo. Monaghan
County Council, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council, Scottish Natural Heritage, Ulster University and the Ulster
wildlife Trust. The project is funded by the Special EU Programmes Body (SEUPB). Newry Mourne and Down District
Council (NMDDC) are the lead partners where they pay the salaries of employees and invoices. Claims for the
project partners are made by the the individual organisations fo SEUPB. The funding for all partners is paid into
NMDDC's bank account. The Council subsequently pays this funding to the project partners. During this current year
NMDDC received €1,196,635 of grants from SEUPB on behalf of the ten project pariners and paid €1,196,635 to the
project partners. These fransactions are not reflected in the Council's Revenue accounts. There were no balances
owing to the other project partners at 31st March 2022

3. Full Fibre Northern Ireland (FFNI) is @ consortium of all ten Councils in NI outside of Belfast and the Business Services
Orgonisation. The Consortium has been awarded £23m from the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sports
(DCMS} to implement a new collaborotive programme to drive greater investment in fiore and digital infrastructure
across Northemn ireland. The Consortium's phased delivery programme will initially manage two DCMS funded
programmes - Local Full Fibre Network (LFEN) and Rural Gigabit Connectivity (RGC). It will also manage the delivery
of further digital infrastructure initiafives and ensure a vital local link for future digital programmes at local authority
level.

This funding aims to deliver full fiore to over 900 sites, which includes council buildings, community centres, GP
surgeries, ambulance stations and fire stations by December 2021 using the 'Public Sector Anchor Tenancy'
approach. This represents Phase 1 of a proposed longer-term programme of fibre related investment.

During the financial year the cost to Council was £1.095m which was fully funded. Creditors of £5.5m and Receipts in
advance of £29k are included at year end. Debtors of £6.3m are included in the accounts at 31 March 2022.
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k'vI Related Party Transactions

A Related Party Transaction is a fransfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a
price is charged. Related Party Transaction exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely
because of its economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part. A related party is
one that has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. This includes cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to
common control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade
Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council.

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below, where a
description of the nature, the amount of the transaction and the amount of the outstanding balance is as follows.
Related party relationships where control exists should be disclosed irespective of whether there have been
transactions beftween the related parties.

Members of the council have direct control over the council's financing and operating policies. The total of
members' allowances paid in 2021/22 is shown in Note 7. During 2021/22, works and services to the value of
£3,471.519 were commissioned from companies in which individual members and senior officers had an interest. The
main recipients within this total were ARC 21 {see separate note below) and Moume Heritage Trust £309,950.

The Council paid grants of £64,906 to a number of organisations in which Councillors and senior officers had an
interest. All payments were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests.

The Council incurred expenditure of £435,041 to other councils of which £130,111 was outstanding as at 31st March
2022.

The Council has recorded income of £517,999 from other councils of which £60,307 was outstanding as at 31st March
2022.

Arc 21, a joint committee organisation, is a waste management group in Northern Ireland representing Councils in
the east of the province. The Council's contribution in the current year was £153,037. The Council paid an additional
£2.848,827 to Arc 21 for various services provided during the year including the use of the Material Recycling Facility
and received income of £257,540.

31 Date of authorisation for issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 28 September 2022
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